AGENDA
UNION COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
Regular Meeting
Monday, June 1, 2009
7:00 P.M.
Board Room, First Floor
Union County Government Center
500 North Main Street
Monroe, North Carolina

WWW.C0.Union.nc.us

Opening of Meeting

a. Invocation - Rev. Al Lewis

b. Presentation of Colors - Members of Union County Marine Corps League,
Detachment 914

C. Pledge of Allegiance - Whitleigh Allen, Union County 4-H Livestock Club,

and Jordan Purser, President of Union County 4-H Teen Council and
Member of Piedmont Middle School 4-H Club
d. Introduction of Public Works Director

Comments by Richard Stone, Former Commissioner and Commandant of
Union County Marine Corps League, Detachment 914, Regarding Flag Day
and Celebration on June 14, 2009, Commemorating 100 Years of 4-H
(*Estimated Time: 5 Minutes)

Comments by Rev. Al Lewis and Robert Braswell Regarding Safer
Communities Ministry (*Estimated Time: 10 Minutes)

Public Hearing - 2008-2009 Manager's Recommended Budget (*Estimated
Time: 20 Minutes)

ACTION REQUESTED: Conduct public hearing

Informal Comments (*Estimated Time: 15 Minutes)

Additions, Deletions and/or Adoption of Agenda (*Estimated Time: 5
Minutes)

ACTION REQUESTED: Adoption of Agenda

Consent Agenda (*Estimated Time: 5 Minutes)
ACTION REQUESTED: Approve items listed on the Consent Agenda

Public Information Officer's Comments (*Estimated Time: 10 Minutes)

*Estimated Times Only


http://www.co.union.nc.us/

Old Business:

9.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14,

15.

Extension Amendment for Emergency Medical Services (*Estimated Time:
10 Minutes)

ACTION REQUESTED: Authorize County Manager to approve Amendment
extending Agreement

Carolina Thread Trail Master Plan Development (*Estimated Time: 15
Minutes)

ACTION REQUESTED: Approve resolution of support and direct staff to
coordinate with Union County municipalities for a Planning Grant for the Carolina
Thread Trail Program

Discussion on Belk-Tonawanda Park Property (*Estimated Time: 10 Minutes)
ACTION REQUESTED: Discussion and direction to staff

Extension of Charlotte Area Transit System (CATS) Agreement (*Estimated
Time: 10 Minutes)

ACTION REQUESTED: Authorize Manager to approve amendment pending
legal review

Capital Improvement Program (CIP) Resolution (*Estimated Time: 10
Minutes)
ACTION REQUESTED: Adopt resolution

Request by Autumn Corporation/White Oak of Waxhaw (*Estimated Time: 10
Minutes)
ACTION REQUESTED: Water allocation

2009 Enterprise Systems Revenue Bonds (*Estimated Time: 10 Minutes)
ACTION REQUESTED: Adopt Resolution Directing the Application to the Local
Government Commission for Approval of Enterprise Systems Revenue Bond;
Requesting Local Government Commission Approval of the County's Enterprise
Systems Revenue Bonds; and Certain Related Matters

New Business:

16.

17.

Non-Mandated Programs within the Department of Social Services
(*Estimated Time: 5 Minutes)
ACTION REQUESTED: Receive presentation

Consideration of EDA Grant Application (*Estimated Time: 5 Minutes)
ACTION REQUESTED: Authorize the Chairman and staff to provide appropriate
certifications and the county to serve as co-applicant of EDA Grant

*Estimated Times Only



18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

Letter of Support for Wingate University School of Pharmacy's Students'
Award Application (*Estimated Time: 5 Minutes)
ACTION REQUESTED: Authorize Chairman to sign letter of support

Consider Scheduling Public Meeting for Input from UCPS Regarding a
Reduction in Funding for FY 2009 and to Take Action to Reduce
Appropriation (*Estimated Time: 5 minutes)

ACTION REQUESTED: Schedule a special meeting for the purposes stated
above, possibly for June 4™ at 9:00 a.m. prior to the budget session

Reappointment of Tax Administrator (*Estimated Time: 10 Minutes)
ACTION REQUESTED: Consider appointment of John Petoskey for Four-Year
Term as Tax Administrator, i.e. Assessor and Tax Collector

Announcements of Vacancies on Boards and Committees (*Estimated Time:
5 Minutes)

a. Adult Care Home Advisory Committee (3 Vacancies)
b. Nursing Home Advisory Committee (2 Vacancies)
C. Region F Aging Advisory Committee (Vacancies for 3 Regular Members
and 1 Alternate Member as of June 30, 2009)
d. Centralina Workforce Development Board (1 Vacancy Representing the
Private Industry)
e. Juvenile Crime Prevention Council:
1. School Superintendent or Designee
2. Chief Court Counselor or Designee
3. Director DSS or Designee
4. County Manager or Designee
5. Member of Faith Community
6. Chief District Court Judge or Designee
7. Local Health Director or Designee
8. Representative of Parks and Recreation
9. County Commissioner Appointees (5)

10. Substance Abuse Professional

f. Parks and Recreation Advisory Committee (1 Vacancy for Unexpired
Term Ending February 2010)

ACTION REQUESTED: Announce vacancies

Appointments to Boards and Committees (*Estimated Time: 10 Minutes)

a. Agricultural Advisory Committee (3 Vacancies)
b. Jury Commission (1 Vacancy)
C. South Piedmont Community College Board of Trustees (1 Vacancy)

ACTION REQUESTED: Consider appointments
Manager's Comments

Commissioners' Comments

*Estimated Times Only



CONSENT AGENDA

June 1, 2009
1. Contracts/Purchase Orders Over $20,000
a. Annual Renewal Agreement with Thomas A. Ebert to Provide
Commercial/Industrial Real Property Valuation Appraisal Support
b. Renewal Agreement with South Piedmont Community College to Provide
Educational Service to Work First Participants
C. Renewal Agreement with Employment Security Commission to Provide
Employment Services for Work First Participants
d. Agreement with North Carolina Alliance of Public Health Agencies, Inc. to
Provide Public Health Contract Personnel on an As-Needed Basis
e. Renewal Agreement with Software House International to Provide Anti-
Virus Software
f. Renewal of Annual Hardware and Software Maintenance and Support

Agreement with Davenport Group for the Primary and Replication
Compellant Storage Area Network Units (SANS)

g. Renewal of Annual Maintenance and Support Agreement with CDW
Government, Inc. for the Operating Software for the Operating Software
that Most of the County's Windows Servers Utilize

ACTION REQUESTED: Authorize Manager to approve agreements a-g pending

legal review

2. Tax Administrator
a. Departmental Monthly Report for April 2009
b. Tenth Motor Vehicle Billing (Revised) in the Amount of $987,565.40 which
reflects $169.91 increase to Lake Park Taxes
ACTION REQUESTED: Approve items a-b

3. Health Department - New Dental Procedure and Fee
ACTION REQUESTED: Accept the Health Department's Dental Clinic offering a
hard night guard as a new dental procedure at a fee of $225, in accordance with
Medicaid rates

*Estimated Times Only
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UNION EMS CONTRACT QUESTIONS
5/19/2009

Statute 153A-260

What are we statutorily required to provide? Do we have to provide more because we own the hospital?

Page 10 of Agreement

Who is on the Board of Directors?

item (e.)

Do any mutual aid agreements exist? If so, what are terms, how are they tracked, how are costs

Exhibit A - pg. 2

item 1.c. recouped?

Exhibit A - pg. 8 Would like a copy of the latest annual report
item 4.d.

"The report shal include....annual unaudited revenues and expenditures..." What would be unaudited?

Exhibit A - pg. 10

"The surplus from prior years...." How can there be a fund balance if we are paying a deficit every year?

itemn (d) (3)

Exhibit A - pg. 10

" ...determine by means of an independent audit...." How often do we audit? ‘Who reviews audit?
Who chooses auditor?

item (e.)

Exhibit A - pg. 10

Would like to see the last quarterly financial statement of the financial condition of Union EMS

item (f.)

Exhibit A - pg. 11

What is current collection rate?

item (f.)

Exhibit A - pg. 12

What alternative funding methodologies have been explored?

item (1.)

Exhibit D

Why do we pay $650/month to 8 fire departments?

page 3 of 3
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FROM LEGAL DEPARTMENT

Response to Commissioner Rogers’ Union EMS Contract Questions

(1) What are we statutorily required to provide? Do we have to provide more because
we own the hospital? [Statute 153A-260] (Note that this question was also raised by
Commissioner Kuehler during the Board meeting)

Short Answer

The County must ensure that emergency medical services are provided to its citizens. This can
be accomplished by (i) operating an EMS system, (ii) contracting for EMS services, (ii1)
franchising the provision of EMS services by ordinance, or (iv) creating a commission with
authority to operate ambulance services. This duty is unrelated to the County’s ownership of the
hospital.

Long Answer

The County’s authority to operate, franchise, and/or contract for ambulance services is governed
by G.S. 153A-250. In addition to giving counties the authority to operate ambulance services,
franchise them by ordinance, and/or contract for them, the statute also authorizes the County to
“create an ambulance commission and vest in it authority to operate the ambulance services.”
The statute itself is permissive in nature (e.g. "A county may by ordinance franchise ambulance
services"; "In lieu of or in addition to adopting an ordinance pursuant to subsection (a) of this
section, a county may operate or contract for ambulance services...") Thus, the statute, taken
alone, does not appear to require the county to provide (either directly or indirectly) for
ambulance services.

However, pursuant to G.S. 143-517, each county is required to “ensure that emergency medical
services are provided to its citizens.” The term “emergency medical services” is broadly defined
by G.S. 143-507(d) to mean “all services rendered by emergency medical services personnel as
defined in G.S. 131E-155(7)" in responding to improve the health and wellness of the community
and to address the individual’s need for immediate emergency medical care in order to prevent
loss of life or further aggravation of physiological or psychological illness or injury.” In
addition, it is required in 10A NCAC 13P.0201 that county governments establish EMS Systems
that have, among other things, “a listing of permitted ambulances to provide coverage to the
service area 24 hours per day.” Although this regulation and G.S. 143-507(d) do not
specifically state that the County must provide for ambulance services, it would be very difficult
to “ensure that emergency medical services are provided to [the County’s] citizens” and meet the
24 hour ambulatory coverage listing requirement without either contracting for ambulance
services, franchising ambulance services, directly providing ambulance services, or establishing
a commission to operate ambulance services.

'G.S. 131E-155(7) defines “emergency medical services personnel” to mean all of the following personnel:
emergency medical dispatcher, emergency medical services-nurse practitioner, emergency medical services-
physician assistant, emergency medical technician, emergency medical technician-intermediate, emergency medical
technician-paramedic.”



(2) Do any mutual aid agreements exist? If so, what are terms, how are they tracked, how
are costs recouped? [Exhibit A-pg.2 item 1.¢.]

By e-mail, Scott Shew, Director of Union EMS, indicates that there was an effort in 2001 to
update an original regional mutual aid agreement coordinated among area EMS systems and the
Centralina Council of Governments in the 1980’s. Scott indicates that this is the closest thing
they have to a formalized Mutual Aid Agreement and that he is not certain whether it was fully
executed by all parties. He has requested that Centralina review its archives to determine if they
are in possession of a fully executed original. He further states as follows:

All the EMS systems in this region work together daily in a “neighbor helping neighbor”
spirit. This includes assisting each other at motor vehicle crashes at the county lines,
occasionally assisting another county by providing an ambulance response just inside
their county when all their units are busy/out of position, and providing ambulance
coverage in support of EMS systems during funerals of fallen EMS personnel.
Obviously, the intent of the [2001 agreement] is to facilitate mutual aid response in larger
“disaster” events which are expected to deplete local EMS resources and provides
guidelines for smooth operations of mutual aid in larger events.

If Union EMS abides by Section 1 of page 19 of the mutual aid document, then it appears that
Union EMS would handle billing for out-of-county responses as it normally would for in-county
responses, or it may “opt not to charge for services on a voluntary basis.” However, the
document goes on to state in part c. of Section 1 that “Any costs for services provided within a
particular county, excluding those normally covered by charges to the patient, will be borne by
that county. For example, if the mutual aid responder is a volunteer rescue squad, the requesting
county should replace supplies, provide gasoline, etc.”

(3)Would like a copy of the latest annual report — “The report shall include . . . annual
unedited revenues and expenditures . ..” - What would be unaudited? [Exhibit A —p. 8
item 4.d.]

(4) “The surplus from prior years ...” How can there be a fund balance if we are paying a
deficit every year? [Exhibit A — p. 10 item (d)(3)]

The funding formula whereby the County subsidizes the deficit of revenues to expenses of the
EMS program does not contemplate the accrual of annual surpluses held in fund balance.
Presumably, this section refers to minor overages resulting from the inexact nature of annual
budgeting. For example, if the last payment of the fiscal year by the County to Union EMS
results in excess funds, UEMS could utilize these funds in the next budget year, but they should
have been accounted for in determining the amount of the next year’s deficit. Finance may be
able to confirm this interpretation and the amount of any fund balance.

(5) “.. . determine by means of an independent audit . ..” How often do we audit? Who
reviews audit? Who chooses auditor? [Exhibit A — p. 10 item (e)]



It is provided in Section 5(f) on page 10 of Exhibit A that “The Corporation shall furnish the
County (i) quarterly financial statements of the financial condition of Union EMS not later than
the 25" day of the first month of each quarter for the preceding quarter, and (ii) copies of an
annual audit of EMS operations within five (5) business days of its receipt by the Corporation...”
Based on this provision, it appears that the audit is to be performed annually. The preceding
subsection (e) requires compliance with GAAP. I defer to Finance as to who reviews the audit.

(6) Would like to see the last quarterly financial statement of the financial condition of
Union EMS [Exhibit A — p. 10 item (f)]

(7) What is current collection rate? [Exhibit A — p. 11 item (f)]

(8) What alternative funding methodologies have been explored? [Exhibit A — p. 12 item
(]

(9) Why do we pay $650/month to 8 fire departments? [Exhibit D page 3 of 3]

Assuming that the County was permitted by the lease agreements and applicable law to assign
the leases to Union EMS, the leases would have been assigned to Union EMS, and Union EMS,
not Union County, would be responsible for paying the amount of the lease. The assignment of
leases is discussed in Section 3(c) of Exhibit A to the Agreement, which states: “If permitted by
the contract documents and applicable law, the County shall assign to the Corporation its interest
in all leases, contracts and licenses existing for the benefit of the County’s emergency services
operations. In the event the County is unable to assign such contracts and leases but continues
payment pursuant thereto for benefit of Union EMS, the County shall in such event deduct the
amount of any such payments from the County funds otherwise payable to the Corporation
pursuant to this Agreement. A listing of leases and contracts is incorporated into the Agreement
as Exhibit D. The Corporation shall assume the obligations of the County under all assigned
leases, contracts, and licenses.” The contract does not detail the purpose of the fire department
leases, though it is my recollection that this was to compensate the VFDs for housing
ambulances/EMS vehicles and staff at the listed fire departments.

In addition to the questions raised by Vice Chairman Rogers, Commissioner Kuehler also
questioned provisions in the EMS agreement pertaining to payment of insurance deductibles,
The provisions in question read as follows:

Section S(k) of Exhibit A

The Corporation shall submit to the County on a quarterly basis a report of all payments
paid by the Corporation for deductibles under the various insurance policies set forth in
Section 6. The County agrees to reimburse the Corporation for these expenses upon
receipt of this report.




Section 6(b)(2) of Exhibit A
[As an endorsement to the policy] Companies issuing the insurance shall have no claims
against the County for payment of premiums or assessments or deductibles which are the

sole responsibility and risk of the Corporation, and the Corporation shall save and hold
Union harmless from any such claim.

The purpose of the second provision is to prevent the insurance company from becoming a third
party beneficiary under the Union County/UEMS agreement. As to its insurance carrier, Union

EMS is solely responsible for payment of deductibles, i.e. “the sole responsibility and risk of the
Corporation.”

Read in tandem with the funding provisions, the first provision serves to compel a report from
UEMS as a prereguisite to the County’s duty to reimburse UEMS for the amount of these
deductibles. This assumes that the County is funding a deficit in operations, as has been the case
each year. Stated another way, the County must fund the deficit in operations to the level of the
mutually agreed standard of care. This amount is budgeted each year and paid in advance
quarterly increments. The amount of insurance deductibles would not be in addition to the

budgeted payments. Thus, the first provision serves to require justification of the amount of the
deductibles by provision of a report.
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Union Emergency Medical Services

May 27, 2009

Mr. Al Greene, County Manager
Union County

500 North Main St., Suite 901
Monroe, N.C. 28112

Dear Mr. Greene:

Please find the attached response to questions regarding the Union EMS contract you
relayed to me from the Union County Commissioners. The document you provided me
contained ten questions of which four had been identified as being answered by county
staff. The attached document answers the remaining six questions as discussed.

Please do not hesitate to contact me if you or the commissioners have any additional
questions. I am available, as needed, to provide further information regarding Union

EMS operations in support of the contract renewal.

Sincerely

. Scott Shew, Director
Union EMS

Attachments (4)

F.O. Box 633 » Monroe, NC 28111 + 704-226-2001 * Fax: 704-226-2000



Union EMS Contract Questions / Answers
May 22, 2009

Page 10 of Agreement, Item e.

Who is on the Board of Directors?

By contract with Union County, management and oversight of Union EMS is delegated from Carolinas
Union Healthcare, Inc. to Union Memorial Regional Medical Center, Inc. d/b/a Carolinas Medical Center
— Union (f’k/a Union Regional Medical Center) (“CMC-Union”). The five-member Board of Directors
for Union Memorial Regional Medical Center, Inc. currently consists of:

Dennis Phillips
Carol Hale
Mike Lutes
Tracy Kuehler
Kim Rogers

Their appointment and the governance as outlined under the Union Memorial Regional Medical Center,
Inc. bylaws is currently:

2 Members of the Union County Board of Commissioners

3 Members nominated by The Charlotte-Mecklenburg Hospital
Authority

Article V Section I: The business and affairs of the corporation
shall be managed by its Board of Directors.

* The Board of Directors has retained responsibility for oversight of EMS.

Exhibit A — pg. 8 item 4.d.
Would like a copy of the latest annual report.
See Union EMS Annual Report (2007-2008) attached.

“The report shall include ....annual un-audited revenues and expenditures...”

What would be un-audited?

From an accounting perspective, un-audited financials are prepared internally and not reviewed by an
external auditor. Audited financials are statements that have been audited by an external auditor after the
close of the fiscal year.

Exhibit A — pg. 10 item S.e.
“,..determine by means of and independent audit...”

How often do we aundit?
The accounting firm Larson-Allen conducts the Union EMS external audit annually.

Who reviews audit?
The audit is reviewed by the CMC-Union CFO and Controller and a copy of the results are provided to
the Board of Directors and a copy is provided to the county.,

Whe chooses auditor?
Historically, CMC-Union has chosen the auditor,



Exhibit A — pg. 1¢ item 5.1.

Would like to see the last quarterly financial statement of the financial condition of Union EMS.
Quarterly Financials attached (Quarter ending March 31, 2009)

Exhibit A — pg. 11 item 5.1,
What is the current collection rate?

Adjusted gross collection rate is 49% (primarily due to Medicare and Medicaid contractuals, the
uninsured, and bad debt)

Adjusted net collection rate is 97% (adjusted for Medicare/Medicaid contractuals).

(Source: Quarterly Financials Ending March 31, 2009)

Exhibit A — pg. 12 item L.

What alternative funding methodologies have been explored?

We understand this language to mean establishing a regular and predictable means of providing the
necessary funding for EMS i.e. annually, quarterly, or monthly payment of the approved allocation to
meet the organization’s cash flow needs. This is accomplished through the annual EMS budget process
which includes review of historical and current year-to-date data to prepare the proposed EMS revenue,
expense, and capital budgets.

The annual proposed budgets are discussed with the County Finance Director as a part of the Union EMS
annual budget process and are essential to predict required county funding levels necessary to support the
EMS operations. Advanced quarterly funding has been the term/methodology since 1997 (see page 9 and
10, item d.)

Information submitted by:
G. Scott Shew, Director
Union EMS

May 27, 2009



Union Emergency Medical Services

Annual Report

July 1, 2007 - June 30, 2008

Carolinas Medical Center-Union
Carolinas HealthCare System



Executive Summary

Fiscal year 2007-2008 marked the eleventh year of Union EMS’ affiliation with the Carolinas
HealthCare System. During fiscal year 2007-2008, Union EMS responded to over 16,000 requests for
service resulting in 10,782 patients being treated and/or transported. The median response time for ali
calls during the period was 8:00 minutes and the average response time on all calls was 8.65 minutes,
Ninety percent (90%) of all emergency calls were answered in 14 minutes, 59 seconds or less.

EMS Gross Collection Rates for the period were 54%, up 16% from the base year (1997-1998) and a
two percent (2%) increase over the 2006-2007 fiscal year. These increases are attributed to more
accurate data collection by our paramedics utilizing an electronic medical record system, continued
efforts of our billing office, and the timely turnover of delinquent accounts to a collection agency.
Details on the collection rates are provided later in this document. Please refer to Quarterly Financial
Reports for the most recent EMS financial data. An external financial audit report for the period will be
available later this year.

Other notable events during the reporting period include:

« Strategic planning sessions yielding a multi-year plan for adding equipment and personnel to
meet growing demands for EMS services

» Award of NCOEMS Response Time ToolKit Grant to EMS and C-COM to establish and
update response time policies and implement changes with the goal of improving EMS
dispatch and response times

¢ Improvement of clinical care through the deployment of C-PAP equipment for respiratory
patients and through the deployment of a wider range of alternative airway and IV access
devices for pediatric and adult patients

« Installation of DriveCams on all emergency vehicles to improve monitoring, maintenance, and
safety of the emergency vehicles and staff

¢ Purchased, trained, and planned implementation of online scheduling software to improve
consistency of employee scheduling, improve employee access to scheduling, and to meet
changing staffing demands

« Finalized move to common review dates for EMS employees to establish a basis for annual
department and system goals

* Provided over 100 community appearances to provide information and education through
ambulance tours and show and tell events

+ Implemented a number of strategies to improve employee satisfaction including improved
communication through consolidating monthly employee meetings and continuing education,
establishing employee e-mail accounts for department communications, providing employees
access to electronic copies of EMS memos and other information online via secured access to
the EMS website, and providing employees access to online request process for requesting
time off and shift swaps.

The remainder of this document provides a more detailed fook into various aspects of the operations
and management of Union EMS for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2008.
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PURPOSE OF REPORT

The purpose of this written report is to quantify response times and collection rates and to summarize
activities and operations of Union Emergency Medical Service for the period beginning July 1, 2007 and
ending June 30, 2008.

The purpose of involvement of the Carolinas HealthCare System and Carolinas Medical Center-Union
in the provision of emergency medical services in Union County is multi-faceted. The following list
represents specific components that are included but not limited to the total purpose of this undertaking.

1. With proper funding from Union County and in cooperation with other patient transportation

providers, Union EMS has been charged to:

» Provide effective and efficient total pre-hospital patient care and transportation service for the
citizens of Union County

o Meet or exceed existing response times as presently determined or as generally accepted
within the EMS industry
Respond to every request for emergency ambulance service originating within Union County

+ Respond to medically necessary and other appropriate requests for non-emergency ambulance
service originating within Union County

» Oversee the maintenance of vehicles, equipment, and perscnnel in a state of readiness 24-
hours-per-day

2. Evaluate and identify system needs appropriate to effectively serve the needs of the citizens of
Union County based upon mutually agreed perfoarmance standards with regards to:
+ Central and satellite facilities
s Vehicles
= Medical equipment

3. Develop and implement a quality improvement system that includes:
e A protocol-driven call review and random sampling program
+ Establishment of standards relative to patient care and pre-hospital times
« A system status management program

4. Provide written reports as scheduled by contract which shall include the following components:
» Response times
» Collection rates
s Dispatch data
s Annual un-audited revenues and expenditures report
« Billing and collection data
s EMS performance
¢ Other items mutually agreed upon

5. Assume the duties of the County in administering and managing the First Responder Program
including but not limited to:

+ Taking actions to improve or enhance the First Responder Program

» Exchange supplies with First Responders to replenish supplies used while providing care

¢ Provide monthly continuing education to First Responders, including assisting with anaphylaxis
recertification, bloodborne pathogens, and hepatitis B vaccinations



MISSION AND VISION
MISSION
Why We Are Here

Our mission is to provide quality pre-hospital emergency medical care and transportation to the people
of our region by maintaining timely, compassionate, and professional responses to all requests for our
services and by reducing the incidence of ililness and injury through community outreach and education.

VISION
What We Want To Be

Our vision is to be the preferred pre-hospital care provider in our region by providing superior service,
increasing public awareness, implementing innovative advancements, and by enhancing accessibility to
a continuum of care while reducing the incidence of iliness and injury through community cutreach and
education.

ORGANIZATION
Staffing and Placement Overview:

Union Emergency Medical Service is the primary provider of emergency and non-emergency pre-
hospital medical care and transportation for the geographical area of Union County. These activities
are accomplished by providing 24-hour coverage including nine Paramedic-staffed ambulances, four
Paramedic-staffed Quick Response Vehicles (QRVs), and one Paramedic staffed ambulance {prime
time) placed in strategic locations throughout Union County.

These locations include three ambulances based at our headquarters (located on the campus of
Carolinas Medical Center-Union), and one ambulance each, located in West Monroe (Cld Charlotte
Highway), and in the communities of Stallings, Unionville, Marshville, Sandy Ridge, Waxhaw, and
Weddington,

Paramedic coverage is enhanced in geographically remote areas by Quick Response Vehicles (QRVs)
which are Sport Utility Vehicles staffed by one Paramedic and equipped with Advanced Life Support
{Paramedic) equipment. QRVs are located in New Salem and Lanes Creek Communities. This
arrangement quickly puts a Paramedic on the scene of an illness or injury in the more remote areas
and permits advanced life support measures and patient stabilization to begin on the scene while the
closest ambulance is en-route for transport. Additional QRVs are operated out of our headquarters and
our Stallings locations by supervisory and training personnel to provide on-scene leadership and
support to primary crews and to supplement responses during periods of high call volume.

To maintain this level of coverage, a full-time staff of 70 Paramedics is required to staff the three 24-
hour shifts of 22 employees and the one (prime-time) ambulance. The Paramedics are led by a Shift
Supervisor, Assistant Shift Supervisor, and Field Training Officer on each shift. The shift operations are
supported administratively by the Director, Operations Manager, and Training Officer who each work a
traditional 40-hour work- week. One EMS secretary works approximately 30 hours per week to handle
a wide variety of office, administrative, and clerical functions. It should be noted that staffing is
supplemented by a roster of 35 PRN employees who work in the ahsences of full-time employees due
to vacation, iliness, and continuing education.



ORGANIZATION, CONTINUED
Vehicle Fleet

Union EMS currently maintains an active fleet of 22 emergency vehicles including 15 ambulances, four
Quick Response Vehicles, and three administrative/guick response vehicles. All ambulances and
primary quick response vehicles are equipped at the advanced life support—-paramedic level and
undergo regular state inspections to maintain their “permits” for operation by the State Office of EMS.
Union EMS logged 465,967 miles on the fleet during fiscal year 2007-2008. The fleet is maintained
according to regular and on-going preventive maintenance schedules and vehicles are replaced on a
regular replacement schedule driven by mileage, repair costs, and mechanical reliability.

Non-Emergency Transports:

While the majority of ambulance service in Union County is of an emergency nature, there are requests
for ambulance service that are clearly non-emergent. Union EMS provides routine, non-emergency, but
medically necessary ambulance transportation between nursing facilities, hospitals, doctors’ offices,
and patients’ residences.

Funding:

Funding for the cost of Union EMS is derived from fees for service and a county funding subsidy for the
difference in revenues and expenses. The billing and collection functions of Unian EMS are out-
sourced and handled by National Reimbursement Group (NRG), a private firm specializing in
ambulance service billing. Amid the explosive growth, the amount of Union County’s subsidy to Union
EMS as a percent of total operations has decreased from 93% in 1997 to 57% in 2008. The 2007-2008
operating budget for Union EMS was $6,208,671 and the county subsidy amounted to $3,556,302 with
budgeted capital expenditures being funded from EMS reserves.

Medical Control:

Medical Control is provided through a contractual arrangement with a physician who serves as the EMS
Physician Medical Director. Paramedics are primarily sponsored by our Physician Medical Director
who performs administrative medical control functions such as protocol review, oversight of quality
management processes, skill performance evaluations, and state boarding examinations. Paramedics
operate very autonomously using an extensive set of protocols and standing-orders developed in
conjunction with the Medical Director. On-line medical control is provided by on-duty emergency
department physicians at receiving hospitals for cases where paramedics need additional direction or
need to deviate from a standardized protocol to meet the needs of unique patient situations.

Dr. Christopher R. Rosanova was appointed EMS Medical Director on July 1, 2006 and continues to
actively serve as the Union EMS Medical Director. Dr. Rosanova is board certified in emergency
medicine and maintains active practice in the Emergency Department setting. The Medica! Director’s
leadership in conjunction with the duties of the Union EMS’ Education/Training/Quality Division insures
that Union EMS serves Union County with competent EMTs and Paramedics utilizing the most up to
date clinical care.

Continuing Education:

Union EMS is recognized by the North Carclina Office of EMS as an approved EMS Training Institution.
Continuing Education for Union EMS Paramedics and EMTs is coordinated by the EMS Training Officer
and provided in-house. Continuing Education is provided monthly in a variety of mandatory and
optional topics to maintain the Paramedic’s knowledge of core material and to keep personnel abreast
of new and changing technology. The Paramedics’ technical skills are evaluated regularly utilizing
mannequins and anatomical models to simulate the human body. The Union EMS Continuing
Education Program is approved by the State Office of EMS and meets or exceeds objectives and
requirements for North Carolina and the National Registry of EMTs.



ORGANIZATION, CONTINUED
Communications:

Union Emergency Medical Services is dispatched by Union County Emergency Communications (C-
COM), which is the central answering point for 911. As Emergency Medical Service units are
dispatched, telecommunication is maintained on a “repeated” VHF radio frequency that utilizes
additional non-repeated VHF frequencies, and cellular telephones are also available to ambulance
crews for medical communications with hospitals.

Union EMS is actively involved with Union County’s Radio Communications Council and supportive of
its work toward implementing the 800Mhz trunked radio system to imprave radio communications inter-
operability within Union County and the Metrolina region.

C-COM provides certified Emergency Medical Dispatchers to take calls for assistance, dispatch the
appropriate EMS and support units while providing medical instructions to the civilian caller.
Information about the patient's condition and the scene are gathered by the dispatchers and relayed to
responding units. The emergency medical dispatch functions of the dispatchers are overseen by the
EMS Medical Director and monitored for quality improvement by the Union County Dispatch Review
and Dispatch Steering Committees as well as the Union EMS Quality Management Committee. C-
COM provides a valuable service and is considered by EMS to be a strategic member of the Union
EMS Team.

First Responders:

Union Emergency Medical Services is supported by the response of the Monroe Fire Department.
Monroe Fire Department began providing First Responder services to the citizens in the City of Monroe
on July 1, 2001 and continues to be a huge asset to EMS within the Monroe city limits. Monroe City
Firefighters are all certified at the EMT level and bring automated defibrillation capabilities to all their
medical responses in support of EMS in the City of Monroe.

Union EMS is also supported in the rural areas of the county by eighteen (18) volunteer fire
departments. These volunteer firefighters have completed the minimum of a 60+ hour Medical
Responder course, and many have fulfilled the requirements and are certified as Emergency Medical
Technicians (EMTs). In addition, all departments have gone beyond the traditional requirements have
obtained instruction in the use of Automatic External Defibrillators (AEDs). Each department has at
least one AED for use to aid victims of cardiac arrest in their district.

To maintain the first responders’ skills and knowiedge, Union Emergency Medicai Service, in
cooperation with South Piedmont Community Coliege, oversees and coordinates a state-approved
monthly continuing education program consisting of classes to review and enhance skills and
knowledge for first responders throughout Union County. EMS coordinates annual Infection Control
Training, periodic epinephrine Anaphylaxis Certifications, and assists in the administration of Hepatitis
B Vaccine for all volunteers.

To further support the first responders and their departments, Union Emergency Medical Services
replaces expendable supplies utilized during the first responders’ care of patients.



ACTIVITY LEVEL

Call volume for fiscal year July 1, 2007 to June 30, 2008 totaled 16,206 responses and resulted in
10,782 billable transports. In addition to the “responses” quantified here, EMS maintained 24-hour
readiness for response throughout the year and conducted a number of medical standby activities,
community relations events, and injury prevention activities.

The following table represents the distribution of ambulance calls by time of day and day of week for
fiscal year 2007-2008. This analysis aids EMS leadership in planning shifts and staffing resources to
better match the demand for services.

Demand Analysis |
Date 1S BETWEEN 07/01/2007 AND 06/30/2008

Hour of Day 1.SUN | 2.MON | 3.TUE | 4WED | 5.THU | 6.FRl | 7.SAT | Total | Percent
00:00 -00:59 | 7t B E 3 405 2%
01:00-01:59 | &1 : 98 4B . ' a0 2%
02:00 -02:59 | 7 a7 A 8L AT 2%
03:00 - 03:59 , : ‘ 2 2%
04:00 - 04:59 : * : o . 2585 2%
05:00 - 05:59 Bei e N g2 2%
06:00 - 06:59 TR 5 410 ags 2%
07:00-07:59 | . B0 b 3%
| 08:00-08:59 | /781 - 85 - 4%
| 09:00 -09:59 |47 gl 197 a3 i 5%
| 10:00 - 10:59 |- # 12 "f ; ‘ * 5%
[11:00-11:59 | 932 6%
12:00-12:59 | 108 128" 6%
13:00-13:59 | i : OF 6%
14:00-14:59 | . 15 ‘ x v a4 6%
15:00 - 15:59 |- 0 1 . 128 ooy 6%
16:00-16:59 | 1 BEL 027 6%
[17:00-17:59 [ ’ - 1 1ezn 6%
[18:00-18:59 | d5a0 6%
[19:00 - 19:59 o B - b 5%
20:00 -20:59 | . At 750 5%
21:00 - 21:59 ; 1 : 08 4%
22:00 - 22:59 o ; 2 o 4%
23:00 - 23:59 oty sl e 86, E 3%
Total 2,121 | 2437 | 2,208 | 2,331 | 2,398 | 2,360 | 2,261 | 16,206
Percent 13% | 15% | 14% | 14% | 15% | 15% | 14% ]




CALL OUTCOMES

In summary, 10,728 of all the EMS calls

Outcome Summary

Trip Date 1S BETWEEN (7/01/2007 AND 06/30/2008

resulted in transport or other billable OUTCOME Count | Percent
outcomes. The remaining calls consist Transport By UEMS 10,703 | 66.0%
of 'ghose where the patient refuses, no Refusal 2544 15.7%
patients are found, or the care was .. olog 909 5 6%
transferred fo another Union EMS unit : o
for transport. The table at right Carc.e Transferred t? Other EMS Units 628 3.9%
9,
represents the outcomes of all EMS Assisted Other Unit 399 2‘50/°
encounters for fiscal year 2007-2008. No Patients Found 345 | 2.1%
Meds Given - No Transport 171 1.1%
Standby Completed (Fire, Swat, PR Event) 118 0.7%
DOA - No CPR 115 0.7%
Football Standby Complete £9 0.4%
Other/Not Applicable 60 0.4%
Transport By POV 44 0.3%
Care Transferred To Flight Crew 36 0.2%
Transport By Police 36 0.2%
Lifting Assistance Only, No injuries 29 0.2%
TOTAL OF CALL OUTCOMES 16,206

TRANSPORT DESTINATIONS

The table at right represents the breakdown of patient transports to the 14 most frequented hospital and

nursing home destinations.

in summary, 58% of transports resulted in
transport to CMC-Union, while 20% of
transports resulted in  transport to
Presbyterian Matthews. We also noted that
9% of transports resulted in transport to
Carolinas Medical Center (CMC), while 4% of
all transports were to CMC-Mercy, and 2%
were to Presbyterian Hospital (Charlotte).

During fiscal year 2007-2008, 39% of all
transports to hospitals resulted in transport to
out of county facilities. Current policy permits
Paramedics to transport fo the patients’
choice of hospitals within Union and
contiguous counties unless the patient's
condition dictates transport to the closest
facility, a trauma center, or an appropriate
interventional cardiac center.

Out of county transports result in longer
transport times and pose a significant
challenge to maintaining coverage and
acceptable response times in the county.

Destination Facility Count
Date 1S BETWEEN (7/01/2007 AND 06/30/2008

Facility Total Percent

Hospital - CMC Union 6,067 58%
Hospital - Presbyterian - Matthews 2,112 20%
Hospital - CMC 980 9%
Hospital - CMC Mercy 370 4%
Hospital - Presbyterian 250 2%
Hospital - CMC Pineville 157 2%
Hospital - Northeast Medical Center 18 0%
Hospital - Springs Memorial 7 0%
Hospital - CMC Unijversity 6 0%
Nursing - Autumn Care of Marshville 126 1%
Nursing - Rehab and Nursing Center 120 1%
Nursing - Brian Center of Monroe 103 1%
Nursing - Lake Park Nursing and

rRehabg ° 79 1%
Nursing - Hospice House 39 0%
Total 10,434




RESPONSE TIMES

Response Time for the purpose of this report is “EMS Response Time" and is defined as the fime in-
minutes calculated from the time an EMS Unit is dispatched until the time that unit arrives on the scene.
Union EMS has maintained overall emergency response time at an average of 8.65 minutes and a
median response time of 8.00 minutes county-wide for the fiscal year 2007-2008.

Fractile Response Time
Date IS BETWEEN 07/01/2007 AND 06/30/2008
Dispatch Priority |S Code 3 (Emergency)
Cumulative Percent c‘;:::’;::‘i: @
Minutes Call Count | of Total Calls of Total Calls
00:00 - 01:59 927 7.8% 7.8%
02:00 - 02:59 936 0.1% 7.9%
03:00 - 03:59 2,214 10.8% 18.7%
04:00 - 04:59 2,226 0.1% 18.8%
05:00 - 05:59 3,149 7.8% 26.6%
06:00 - 06:59 4195 8.8% 35.4%
07:00 - 07:59 6,490 19.4% 54.8%
08:00 - 08:59 6,523 0.3% 55.1%
09:00 - 09:59 7,556 8.7% 63.8%
10:00 - 10:59 8,434 7.4% 71.2%
11:00 - 11:59 9,208 6.5% T7.7%
12:00 - 12:59 10,331 9.5% 87.2%
13:00 - 13:59 10,348 0.1% 87.3%
14:00 - 14:59 10,703 ©3.0% | 90.3%-
15:00 - 15:59 11,177 4.0% 94.3%
16:00 - 16:59 11,358 1.5% 95.9%
17:00 - 17:59 11,367 0.1% 95.9%
18:00 - 18:59 11,478 0.9% 96.9%
19:00 - 19:59 11,672 0.8% 97.7%
20:00 - 24:59 11,781 1.8% 99.4%
l 25:00 + 11,847 0.5% 100.0 %

The table, at left, presents the Fractile
Emergency Response Time for fiscal year
2007-2008. This EMS industry measure
quantifies the individual and cumulative
percentage of calls that are answered in
various time intervals.

A Union EMS paramedic is on the scene of
approximately 64% of all emergency calls
within nine minutes and fifty-nine seconds
(9:59) and on the scene of 90% of all
emergency calls within fourteen minutes and
fifty-nine seconds (14:59).

tn an effort to further improve these response
times, Union EMS and the Union County
Emergency Communications Center applied
for and were awarded a Response Time
Improvement Grant to facilitate incremental
improvements in 911 call processing, to set
goals and implement policy for tracking and
improving selected response time intervals,
and for improving over-all EMS response time
and efficiency.

At the time of this writing, the preliminary
results following initial policy changes

demonstrated a positive improvement in
several of the response time increments.



PATIENT SATISFACTION

Union EMS monitors the perception and satisfaction of our patients through feedback received as a
part of our EMS Patient Satisfaction Survey program. The information obtained from the surveys is
shared with staff. Successes are celebrated and any opportunities for improvement are identified and
addressed. Between January and June 2008, Union EMS mailed over 400 surveys and achieved an
11% complete survey return rate. The results were overwhelmingly positive with 98% favorable
responses ¢n most questions.

EMS patients responding to the survey identified the foliowing as “most important” to them at the time
of their emergency:

¢ Quick Response

* Breathing Relief/Assistance

» Pain Relief

Other items identified by EMS patients as being important to them include:
¢ Caring/Compassion
=  Knowledge
= Professionalism

The following table summarizes the survey responses of 46 patients surveyed between January and
June 2008.

pre 2 Lo W : T i e B - ey i o R ;“’ﬁi s
é’z%:; i . SLI ; fath T;. i ’3;’3 .’: s 5 w‘g i i f “r
| - Favorabl am? Hignly 4 . e o
fﬂf?‘v “32’«# YEW n “g :3 ] E“w )u“ °‘§f ‘ni? % g:%%?,} S f&:“ f‘gé‘%; i é‘% | b ‘é&?& i :i : r?sf el ;" 2t ?aﬁf”& ErSE "ﬁfﬁf nfﬁf:i:
Response Time 98% 78% 4% 2% 0% 2% 13%
L Medical Care 98% 87% 11% 2% 0% 0% 0%
L Explaining 93% 74% 17% 2% 4% 0% 2%
Reduce Anxiety 98% 80% 13% 2% 0% 0% 4%
N°’,‘d"'a‘1‘;‘i'°a' 98% 50% 1% 2% 0% 0% | 37%
Courtesy 98%, 87% 11% 2% 0% 0% 0%
Qverall 98% 93% 4% | 2% 0% 0% | 0%
Impression

Qver half of patients responding to the surveys also submitied written comments regarding their
experience with Union EMS. The following are a small sample of these comments:

« ‘I was very pleased with response time, professional handling of my problem”

» “They were a wonderful team & provided help quickly - very responsive!! Thanks!!”
“Thank you to the men who helped me the morning of 1/28/08. | greatly appreciate your speed
& efficiency!”

» “I'd give the group that came to my house on Monday morning an "A" - Continue to do what you
are doing”

s "I would like to thank all the personnel for the care I received on both occasions that | was
taken by ambulance. They were all very caring and really made me feel at ease. Thank you ali!”

= “They were very thorough in their questions about my problem. Then they got busy doing their
job and getting me ready for transport to CMC-Union. Thanks for being there!”
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FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS

Cost

Any competent and responsive emergency medical service that provides service on a 24-hour basis is
expensive to operate and maintain. Equipment and staff exist primarily to be ready to respond 24-
hours per day, 7-days per week to provide required coverage of the county. Bases and response units
need to be strategically located and numerous enough to permit minimum response times. Coverage
must flex so that equipment and personnel remain uncommitted and prepared to respond to the next
emergency. All of these features of readiness are expensive and do not produce revenue.

The budgetary cost for an ambulance call that results in transport is approximately $576 (annual budget
divided by the number of billable transports). The cost to Union County is approximately $330 per
transport, down 45% from the base year county cost per trip of $604.

User Fees

While Union EMS charges a fee to users of its services, the ceiling of these fees is regulated by the
EMS Agreement as set forth by the Union County Board of Commissioners. Currently, EMS is
authorized to maintain the user fees at a level no higher than 110% of the median of adjacent county
EMS systems.

The table at right represents the Union EMS fee schedule in | Union EMS Ambulance Fee Schedule

effect during fiscal year 2007-2008. The majority (70%) of July 1, 2007 - June 30, 2008
Union EMS transports fall into the ALS-1 Emergency category Description Fee |
and 18% are in the_BLS Non-emergency catego_ry. The g g Non-Emergency $300.00 |
average transport mileage is ten (10) loaded miles. The BLS Emeraen $350.00
average charge per transport is $503. This fee schedule is eNcy :
evaluated each year and adjusted, as needed, to bring Union |-ALS 1 Non-Emergency $426.00
EMS in-line with other services in the region and to enable the | ALS 1 Emergency $425.00
service to take full advantage of the anticipated changes in @reatment!No Transp | $200.00
Medicare reimbursement related to the national ambulance | ALS2 $552.50
fee schedule. Specialty Care Transport $625.00
Mileage {loaded miles) $9.34

Collection and Reimbursement Methodology
On revenue producing transports, collection of ambulance fees is difficult because of the types of calls,
the economic status of some of the users, and federal and state regulations regarding Medicare and
Medicaid reimbursements.

As an example, for a charge of $503, Medicare will recognize approximately $365 of the charge for
reimbursement. Medicare only reimburses 80% of the amount they recognize, so a $503 charge is
reimbursed by Medicare at approximately $292. Only the remainder of the “approved” amount is
billable to the patient or secondary insurance {$73). The contractual write-off on this account becomes
$138. Approximately one-half of all transports are in the Medicare payor class.
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FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS, CONTINUED

Billing and Collections

Billing and coliections are handled by National Reimbursement Group (NRG), a firm specializing in
ambulance billing and collections. NRG has over 25 years experience in the EMS and ambulance
billing industries. NRG has handled Union EMS’ billing and collections since December 1, 1999.
NRG's services inciude electronic filing of private insurance, Medicaid and Medicare, and referral of
delinquent accounts to a specialized collection agency.

Union EMS’ coliection performance continues to improve as a result of more accurate data collection by
our paramedics, implementation of an electronic medical record system, continued efforts of our billing
office, and the timely turnover of delinquent accounts to a collection agency. This table represents
collection data for fiscal year ending June 30, 2008.

Total adjusted **Net adjusted
Total Collection Collection
Billed Rate Rate
| Base Year $1,002,042 38% 56% |

Quarter Ending Sept. 2007 $1,298,460 57% 105%
Quanrter Ending Dec. 2007 $1,358,358 51% 88%
Quarter Ending March 2008 $1,416,261 51% 107%
Quarter Ending June 2008 $1,352,526 56% 128%
FY 07-08 Year to Date $5,425,606 54% **107%
Variance from Base Year 16% 51%

** Net Adjusted Coilection Rate presented in this table includes cash received, Medicare and
Medicaid Contractuals, and write-offs of uncollectible accounts that occurred during the period.
The average net collection rate for the period {cash + Medicare and Medicaid Contractuals) was
73%.

EMS Funding
The difference in revenue and expenses is covered by the taxpayers of Union County in the form of a
subsidy paid to Carolinas Medical Center-Union for the operation of Union EMS.

Union EMS is striving to make the service less of a burden to Union County by generating more income
from user fees and utilizing more efficient collection processes beginning with data collection by
Paramedics and ending with continued follow up on delinquent accounts by a collection agency. Ali
these efforts are intended to shift the cost of EMS away from the county taxpayers and to the users of
our services.

Union EMS is actively involved in other endeavors to maximize reimbursement, including associational

and lobbying activities coordinated through the NC Association of EMS Administrators and the NC
Association of County Commissioners.
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GOALS IDENTIFIED

Union EMS has identified new goals for fiscal year 2008-2009 that include:

Addition of budgeted personnel and equipment to deploy an additional ambulance to enhance
EMS availability and response 12-hours per day, seven days per week

Continued planning and implementation of EMS strategic plan to systematically add personnel
and equipment to meet the growing demands for service

Obtain approval and begin participation in the debt set-off collection program as a means of
increasing collections on bad debt accounts

Full implementation of CrewScheduler online scheduling software to improve the process,
consistency, and employee access to scheduling, time-off requests, employee shift trades, and
documentation of time and labor records

Deployment of wireless mobile gateway devices on all EMS vehicles to provide continuous
wireless computer network connectivity between our EMS vehicles and the county and hospital
networks — enabling GPS vehicle tracking, mobile CAD, wireless electronic medical record
upload, and wireless transmission of patient care data (EKGs}

Improvement in EMS response times through incremental improvements in
dispatch/communications policy, response procedures, ambulance turn-around time, use of
vehicle tracking technology, and other opportunities as they become available

Re-approval of the EMS System Plan for Union County in 2009 with status change to "Model
System"” designation

Continued monitoring and improvement of EMS employee satisfaction

Continued monitoring and improvement of patient satisfaction
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who continue to provide support to the administration and operation of Union EMS.

Thanks to the Operations Manager, Training Officer, and all the Shift Supervisors for their teamwork in
providing input to Union EMS’ strategic vision as well as leadership and action necessary to execute
current and future plans for continually improving the effectiveness and efficiency of the Union EMS
system. In addition to managing their shifts, schedules, and their personnel, each of the shift
supervisors and their assistants attend to additional areas of responsibility to support specific areas of
the EMS operations including: buildings, furishings, and grounds; vehicles and durable medical
equipment; and computers and information technology.

Thanks to Christopher Rosanova, DO who continues to serve as the medical conscience of the agency
while providing medical direction and support to the leadership staff and field training officers as well as
medical oversight of our EMTs and paramedics in the field.
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protocols for implementation; provide continuing education and skills practice opportunities; precept
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department administrative duties as well as maintaining all the points of communication between our
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CONCLUSION

This concludes the 23rd year for Union EMS and its eleventh year of affiliation with Carolinas Medical
Center-Union and the Carclinas HealthCare System. Union EMS continues to grow, change, and to be
further developed by the men and women who are Union EMS. Whether serving as an EMT or
paramedic, field training officer or supervisor, or in an administrative leadership role, the teamwork of
the pecople determines what Union EMS is and how successful Union EMS can be now and in the
future.

In setting and accompilishing our short and long term goals, and sharing the information and statistics
contained within this report, we are demonstrating our continuous commitment to provide excellent
services at reasonable costs to our customers and the people of Union County. The purpose of our
existence is to provide quality, timely, compassionate and professional service to the people of Union
County. We at Union EMS pledge all our efforts to this end and eagerly look forward to an even more
productive and efficient service as a means of accomplishing this mission.

Respectfully submitted,

G. Scott Shew, Director
Union Emergency Medical Services
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Lars:nAllen

CPAs, Consultants & Advisors
www. larsonalien.com

To the Board of Directors
Union Emergency Medical Services
Monroe, North Carolina

We have audited the financial statements of Union Emergency Medicai Services (the “Company”)
for the years ended June 30, 2008 and 2007, and have issued our report thereon dated February
18, 2009. Professional standards require that we provide you with the following information related
tc our audit.

Our responsibility under U.S. Generally Accepted Auditing Standards

As stated in our engagement letter dated May 9, 2008, our responsibility, as described by
professional standards, is to express an opinion about whether the financial statements prepared by
management with your oversight are fairly presented, in all material respects, in conformity with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Our audit of the financial statements does not relieve
you or management of your responsibilities.

1. Our responsibility is to plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonabie, but not absolute,
assurance that the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

2. As part of our audit, we considered the internal control of Union Emergency Medical
Services. Such considerations were solely for the purpose of determining our audit
procedures and not to provide any assurance concerning such internal control.

3. We are responsible for communicating significant matters related to the audit that are, in our
professional judgment, relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting
process. However, we are not required to design procedures specifically to identify such
matters.

Other information in documents containing audited financial statements

Our audit opinion, the audited financial statements, and the notes to financial statements should
only be used in their entirety. Inclusion efthe audited financial statements in a client prepared
document, such as an annuai report, should be done only with our prior approva! and review of the
document. Our responsibility for ather information in documents containing the entity’s financial
statements and report does not extend beyond the financial information identified in the report. We
do not have an obligation to perform any procedures to corroborate other information contained in
such documents.

Pianned scope and timing of the audit

We performed the audit fieldwork on-site August 27 through August 29, 2008 and subsequent to
year-end procedures September 1, 2008 through the issuance of the independent auditor report
dated Fehruary 18, 2009,

Larsanallen TLE i & member of Nexia Imremational,
awnridhwarhe petwork of independent accuanting and Lonsuliing firms.

INTERNATIONAL
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Significant audit findings
Gualitative aspects of accounting practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. In
accordance with the terms of our engagement letter, we will advise management about the
appropriateness of accounting policies and their application. The significant accounting policies
used by Union Emergency Medical Services are described in Note 1 to the financiai statements. No
significant new accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not
significantly changed during fiscal year 2008.

We noted no transactions entered intc by the Company during the year for which there is a lack of
authoritative guidance or consensus. There are no significant transactions that have been
recognized in the financial statements in a different period than when the transaction occurred.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and
are based on management's knowledge and experience about past and current events and
assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of
their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events
affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimate affecting
the financial statements was management's estimate of the allowance for doubtful accounts. This
estimate is based on historical cash collections and expected future ends. We evaluated the key
factors and assumptions used to develop the allowance in determining that it is reasonable in
relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Difficulties encountered in performing the audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in perferming and completing
our audit.

Corrected and uncorrected misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumuiate all known and likely misstatements identified
during the audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate thern to the appropriate level of
management. Management did not identify and we did not notify them of any uncorrected financial
statement misstatements.

Disagreernents with management

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a
financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that
could be significant to the financial staterments or the auditors’ report. We are pleased to report that
no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit.

Management representations

We have requested certain representations frorm management that are included in the management
representation letter dated February 18, 2009.
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Management consultations with other independent accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and
accounting matters, simitar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation
involves application of an accounting principle to the Company's financial statements or a
determination of the type of auditors’ opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our
professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the
consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other
accountants.

Other audit findings or issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principies and
auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as the Company’s auditors.
However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our
responses were not a condition to our retention.

This information is intended solely for the use of management, the Board of Directors, and others
within the Company, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these

specified parties.
Lonaellllon LLF

LarsonAllen LLP
Charlotte, North Carolina
February 18, 2009
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Board of Directors
Union Emergency Medical Services
Monroe, North Carclina

We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of Union Emergency Medical Services {the
“Company”)as of and for the years ended June 30, 2008 and 2007, as listed in the table of contents. These
financial staternents are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Qur responsibility is to express
an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Union Emergency Medical Services as of June 30, 2008 and 2007, and the changes in its
financial position and its cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

The Management’'s Discussion and Analysis on pages 2 to 5 is not a required part of the basic financial
statements, but is supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.
We have applied certain limited procedures, which consist principally of inquiries of management regarding
the methods of measurementand presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did
not audit the information and express no apinion on it.

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a
whole. The supplemental infarmation on page 15 is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not
a required part of the basic financial statements. This information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in our audit of the basic financial statements, and in our opinion, is fairly stated in all
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole,

Lovrwetlillon LLF

LarsonAllen LLP
Charlotte, North Carolina
February 18, 2009
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UNION EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2008 AND 2007

QOverview of the Financial Statements

These financial statements include management's discussion and analysis, the independent auditors’ report
and the basic financial statements of Union Emergency Medical Services (the “Company”). The financial
statements also include notes that explain in more detait some of the informaticn in the financial statements
and a supplemental schedule.

Required Financial Statements

The Company's financial statements repori information of the Company using accounting methods similar to
those used by private-sector health care organizations. These statements offer shori and long-term financial
information about its activities. The balance sheetincludes ail of the Company's assets and liabtiities and
provides information about the nature and amounts of investments in resources (assets) and the obligations
to the Company’s creditors (liabilities). The balance sheet also provides the basis for evaluating the capital
structure of the Company and assessing the liquidity and financial flexibility of the Company.

All of the current year's revenues and expenses are accounted for in the statement of activities, This
statement measures the success of the Company's operations over the past year and can be used to
determine whether the Company has successfully recovered all of its costs through its fees and other
sources of revenue, profitability and credit worlhiness.

The final required statement is the statement of cash flows. This statement reporis cash receipts, cash
payments, and net changes in cash - resulting from operations, investing, and financing activities, It also
provides answers to such questions as where did cash come from, what was cash used for and what was
the change in the cash balance during the reporting period.

Financial Analysis of the Company

The balance sheet and the statement of activities report the net assets of the Company and the changes in
them. The Company's net assets - the difference between assets and liabilities - are a way to measure
financial health or financial position. Over time, increases or decreases in the Company's net assets are one
indicator of whether its financial heaith is improving or detericrating., However, one will need to consider
other non-financial factors such as changes in economic conditions, population growth and new or changed
governmental iegisiation.



UNION EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2008 AND 2007

Balance Sheets
A summary of the Company's balance sheets at June 30, 2008 and 2007 is presented in Table A-1.
Table A-1

Condensed Balance Sheets
June 30, 2008 and 2007

2008 2007
Current Assels $ 3,153,168 $ 3,071,820
Capital Assets 890,952 1,077,644
Total Assets $ 4,044,120 $ 4,149464
Current Liabilities 5 520,505 $ 654,301
Net Assets:
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 890,952 1,077,644
Unrestricted Net Assets 2,632,663 2,417,519
Total Net Assets 3,523,615 3,495,163
Total Liabilities and Net Assets $ 4,044,120 $ 4,149.464

The net assets of the Company increased to $3,523,615 during 2008; an increase of $28,452 from 2007
due lo favorable results from operations.

3



UNION EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2008 AND 2007

Statements of Activities

While the balance sheets show the change in financial position of net assets, the statements of activities
provides answers to the nature and source of these changes.

Table A-2
Condensed Statements of Activities
Years Ended June 30, 2008 and 2007

2008 2007
Operating Revenues $ 6,442,046 $ 6,184,367
Non-operating Income 52,058 111,709
6,494,104 6,296,096
Emplioyee Compensation 4,825,872 4,554 965
Depreciation 376,399 376,723
Other Expenses 1,263,381 1,074,820
6,465,652 6,006,508
Increase in Net Assets 28,452 289,588
Net Assets, Beginning of Year 3,495,163 3,205,575
Net Assets, End of Year $§ 3,523,615 $§ 3,495,163

The Company’s operating revenues increased 4.2% in 2008, primarily due to increased transports. The
Company’s operating expenses increased approximately 7.6% in 2008 due primarily to increased volume,
merit wage increases needed to retain qualified staff, an increase in maintenance and repairs and inflation
on the other operating expenses.

Table A-3
Capital Assets
June 30, 2008 and 2007

2008 2007
Land $ 20,000 $ 20,000
Building 42,061 46,795
Furniture and Equipment 431,534 573,563
Vehicles 397 357 437,286

$ 890,952 $ 1,077,644

At June 30, 2008 and 2007 the Company had no outstanding debt associated with these capital assets.

4



UNION EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2008 AND 2007

Economic and Other Factors

The Company is subject to a highly regulated environment and affected by a number of factors beyond the
Company's control. Any combination of these could impact the Company. Significant concems in the
coming months include: 1) growing demand for emergency medical services; 2) an increasingly challenging
reimbursement environment and overall economic uncertainty; 3) continued costs associated with new
federal privacy laws and state directives; and 4} emergency preparedness.

The Company has experienced growth over the past several years and expects that trend to continue.
Factors contributing to this include overall population growth, an aging population which accesses
emergency medical services at a much higher rate than younger people, and a growing number of
uninsured patients who typically access health care only in a crisis and on an emergent basis.

Another significant concern is the increasingly challenging reimbursement environment. Many of the
patients the Company cares for are insured by Medicare or Medicaid. In addition, Medicare and Medicaid
only provide reimbursement at set rates, regardless of the actual cost required to provide the service, which
is much higher than the dollars recouped. Collecting user fees from third-party payers is also becoming
more challenging and requires extensive staff time. Finally, the Company provides care to any patient who
needs it, regardless of their ability to pay. As the economic uncertainty continues it is likely that the number
of people uninsured or underinsured will increase and significantly fimit reimbursement opportunities.

The Company has made consistent and significant strides in improving the collection of user fees, While
this is very positive, this is subject to change in the future based upon the strength of the economy.

Finance Contact
The Company's financial statements are designed to present users with a general overview of the
Company's finances and to demonstrate the Company's accountability. If you have any questions about the

report or need additional financial information, please contact Finance Department, Union Emergency
Medical Services, P. O. Box 5003, Mcnroe, NC 28111,

5



UNION EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES
BALANCE SHEETS
JUNE 30, 2008 AND 2007

2008 2007
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 2,533,041 $ 2,459,803
Patient Accounts Receivable, Net of Allowances of $654,816
and $967,216 in 2008 and 2007, Respectively 580,995 590,911
Other 39,132 21,106
Total Current Assets 3,153,168 3,071,820
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, AT COST 2,595,726 2,707,534
Accumulated Depreciation (1,704,774) (1,629,890}
Total Property and Equipment, Net 890,952 1,077,644
Total Assets 3  4,044120 $ 4149464
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 5 86,679 $ 216,141
Due to Carolinas HealthCare Systemn 306,590 290,040
Other Liabilities and Accruals 127,236 148,120
Tatal Current Liabilities 520,505 654,301
NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 890,952 1,077,644
Unrestricted Net Assets 2,632,663 2,417,519
Total Net Assets 3,523,615 3,495,163
Total Liabilities and Net Assets $ 4,044120 $ 4,149,464

See accompanying Notes fo Financial Statements.
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UNION EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2008 AND 2007

UNRESTRICTED REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Net Patient Service Revenue {Net of Provision for Uncollectible
Accounts of $1,369,272 in 2008 and $1,299,132 in 2007)

Union County Funding
Other Revenue
Total Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Employee Compensation
Depreciation
Other Expenses

Total Operating Expenses

OPERATING INCOME {LOSS)
NONQPERATING INCOME
Investment Income
Gain (Loss) on Disposal of Property and Equipment, Net
INCREASE IN NET ASSETS
Net Assets - Beginning of Year

NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.

N

2008 2007
$  2,865636 $ 2,554,881
3,556,302 3,608,071
20,108 21,435
6.442,046 6,184 387
4,825,872 4,554,965
376,399 376,723
1,263,381 1,074,820
6,465,652 6,006,508
(23,606) 177,879
52,089 102,920
(31) 8,789
52.058 111,700
28,452 289,588
3,495,163 3,205,575
$ 3,523,615 § 3495163




UNION EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2008 AND 2007

2008 2007
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash Received from Patients $ 2,929,116 2,532 887
Cash Received from Union County 3.556,302 3.608,071
Cash Paid for Goods and Services (2,647,892) (1,958,963)
Cash Paid to Employees for Services (3,635,228) (3,415,937)
Net Cash Provided by Operating Acfivilies 202,298 766,058
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAI. AND RELATING
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of Property and Equipment (189,738) {549,317}
Proceeds from Sale of Property and Equipment - 9,080
Net Cash Used in Capital and Related Financing Activities (189,738) (540,237)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest Income 60,678 93,002
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 60,678 93,002
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 73,238 318,823
Cash and Equivalents - Beginning of Year 2,459,803 2,140,980
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR $ 2,533,041 2,459,803
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME {LOSS) TO NET
CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating Income {Loss) 3 (23,606) 177,879
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to Net
Cash Provided by Operating Activities:
Depreciation 376,399 376,723
Changes in:
Patient Accounts Receivable, Net 8,816 (87,559)
Due to Carglinas HealthCare Systemn 16,550 129,114
Cther Operating Assets and Liabilities {176,961) 169,901
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities $ 202,298 766,058

See accompanying Notes lo Financial Statements,
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NOTE 1

UNION EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2008 AND 2007

ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization

Union Emergency Medicai Services (the “Company”) is an operating division of Caroiinas Union
Healthcare, Inc., a not-for-profit company, that provides emergency medical services for the
benefit of the citizens of Union County, North Caroiina (“the County™). On May 1, 1997, the
County entered into a contract with Carolinas Union Heaithcare, Inc. (*CUM"), a subsidiary of
the Charlotte-Mecklenburg Hospita! Authority d/b/a Carolinas HealthCare System ("CHS"), for
the provision of emergency medical services in Union County through June 30, 2009.

Basis of Presentation

Due to its relationship with CHS and the County, the Company is subject to the application of
accounting pronouncements issued by the Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB).
In 1993, GASB issued Statement No. 20, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary
Funds and Other Government Entities that use Proprietary Fund Accounting” (the "Statement”),
which provides guidance on the effect of GASB pronouncements on governmental entities
using business-type accounting and financial reporting. In accordance with the Statement, the
Company has elected to follow the GASB hierarchy exclusively regarding authoritative literature
issued after November 30, 1989.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents represent funds of the Company that are held by Carolinas Medicat
Center - Union {the “Medica!l Center"), a subsidiary of CUH, for purposes of maximizing the
investment yield on these funds. Under this cash management arrangement, the Company
deposits its cash receipts and any other available cash in an account designated by the Medical
Center. The Medical Center also makes payments on behalf of the Company. Interestincome
is allocated to the Company based upon its pro rata share of cash held in the Medical Center’s
account.

All of the Company's cash and cash equivalents are invested in liquid interest-bearing
cashmoney market accounts. Management believes the risk associated with these accounts is
minimal. The Company does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment
maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from changing
interest rates. However, management has historically only invested in low-risk, liquid cash and
money market accounts.

The Company places its temporary cash and investments with high credit quality financial
institutions, Attimes such cash and investments may be in excess of the FDIC insurance fimits.
Management believes these financial institutions have strong credit ratings and that credit risk
related to these deposits is minimal.

@)



NOTE 1

UNION EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2008 AND 2007

ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts

The Company provides an allowance for uncollectible self-pay and miscellaneous commercial
insurance accounts. Patients are not required to provide collateral for services rendered.
Payment for services is required upon receipt of an invoice, after payment by insurance, if any.
Self-pay accounts are analyzed for collectibility based on the months past due and payment
history. An allowance is estimated for these accounts based on the historical experience of the
Company. Accounts that are determined to be uncollectibie are sent to a collection agency and
written off at that time.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is recorded at cost. Ordinary repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed as incurred. Property and equipment contributed from the County were recorded at
estimated fair market value at May 1, 1997. Upon sale or retirement of the asset, the costand
related accumulated depreciation are relieved from the respective accounts and the resulting
gain or loss is credited or charged to non-operating income or loss. Depreciation is computed
using the straight-line method over estimated useful lives ranging from 3 to 20 years.

Gifts of long-tived assets such as land, buildings, or equipment are reported as unrestricted
support, and are excluded from the excess of revenues over expenses, unless explicit donor
stipulations specify how the donated assets must be used. Gifts of long-lived assets with
explicit restrictions that specify how the assets are to be used and gifts of cash or other assets
that must be used to acquire long-lived assets are reported as restricted support. Absent
explicit donor stipulations about how tong those long-lived assets must be maintained,
expirations of donor restrictions are reported when the donated or acquired long-lived assets
are placed in service.

Charity Care

The Company provides care to patients who meet certain criteria under its chanty care policy
without charge or at amounts less than its established rates. Charges forgone for charity care
for the years ended June 30, 2008 and 2007 amounted to $138,530 and $187,397,
respectively.

{10)



NOTE 1

UNION EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2008 AND 2007

ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Net Patient Service Revenue

Net patient service revenue is reported at the estimated net realizable amounts from patients,
third-party payors and others for services rendered, including estimated retroactive adjustments
under reimbursement agreements with third-party payors. Retroactive adjustments are accrued
on an estimated basis in the period the refated services are rendered and adjusted in future

periods as final settlements are determined.

Net patient service revenue for the years ended June 30, 2008 and 2007, consists of;

2008 2007
Gross Patient Charges at Established Rates $ 5428829 4,796,449
Less:
Medicare and Medicaid Contractual Adjustments $95,391 755,039
Charity Care 198,530 187,397
Provision for Uncollectible Accounts 1,369,272 1,299,132
2,563,193 2,241,568
Net Patient Service Revenue $ 2865636 2,554,881

(11)



UNION EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2008 AND 2007

NOTE2 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND PAYABLE

Patient accounts receivable and accounts payabie (including accrued expenses) reported as
current assets and liabilities by the Company at June 30, 2008 and 2007 are as follows:

2008 2007

Accounts Receivable
Receivables:

Patients and Insurance 3 895,376 3 873,794

Medicare and Medicaid 340,435 684,333

Total Gross Receivables 1,235,811 1,558,127

Allowances for Doubtful Accounts and Contractual
Allowances (654,818) {967,216)
Total Patient Receivables, Net 3 580,995 3 590,911
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses
Vendors $ 86,679 $ 216,141
Salaries and Benefits 306,590 290,040
Insurance and Cther 127,236 148,120
Total Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 3 520,505 $ 654,301

(12)



UNION EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2008 AND 2007

NOTE3 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

The compeonents of property and equipment for the years ended June 30, 2008 and 2007 are

as follows:

June 30, 2008

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Capital Assets being Depreciated:
Land $ 20,000 ) - $ - $ 20,000
Buildings 65,181 - “ 65,181
Furniture and Equipment 1,035,784 16,246 - 1,052,030
Vehicles 1,586,569 173,492 (301,546) 1,458,515
Total Capital Assets being
Depreciated 2,707,534 189,738 {301,546) 2,595,726
Less Accumulated Depreciation for:
Buildings (18,386) (4,734) - (23,120)
Furniture and Equipment (462,221) (158,273) . (620,496)
Vehicles (1,149,283} (213,390) 301,515 (1,061,158}
Total Accumulated Depreciation (1,629,890} (376,399) 301,515 (1,704,774}
Capital Assets, Net $ 1,077,644 $ (186.661) $ (31) $ 890,952
June 30, 2007
Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Capital Assets being Depreciated:
Land L 20,000 L - $ - $ 20,000
Buildings 55,486 9,695 - 65,181
Furniture and Equipment 666,561 369,223 - 1,035,784
Vehicles 1,687,424 170,399 (271,254) 1,586,569
Tofal Capital Assets being
Depreciated 2,429,471 549,317 (271,254) 2,707,534
Less Accumulated Depreciation for:
Buildings (14,245) {4,141} - {18,386}
Furniture and Equipment (320,019) {(142,202) - (462,221)
Vehicles (1,189,866} (230,380) 270,963 (1,149,283}
Total Accumulated Depreciation {1,524,130} (376,723) 270,963 (1,629,890}
Capital Assets, Net $ 905,341 $ 172,594 $ (291) $ 1,077.644

Depreciation expense for the years ended June 30, 2008 and 2007 was $376,399 and

$376,723, respectively.
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NOTE 4

NOTE 5

NOTE 6

UNION EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2008 AND 2007

RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company has an arrangement with CHS whereby CHS makes payroll payments on behalf
of the Company. The expense incurred for services provided under these arrangements was
approximately $4,300 and $4,900 for the years ended June 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

CHS also pays certain expenses on behalf of the Company and the Company reimburses CHS
for those expenses.

In addition, the Medical Center provides cerlain human resource and accounting sefvices fo the
Company. The amounts incurred for human resource and accounting services was
approximately $30,500 and $24,000, respectively, for the year ended June 30, 2008 and
$30,400 and $23,900, respectively, for the year ended June 30, 2007.

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

CHS3 has a single-employer defined benefit pension plan and all full-time employees of the
Company who were employed prior to age 60 are eligible to participate in the plan. The pian
provides pension benefits to vested participants who have attained five or more years of
service. Those benefits are hased on years of service and the employee’s compensation. The
Board of Commissioners of CHS has the authority to amend plan provisions.

Amounts funded for the plan are based upon actuarial calculations. The plan utilized the
projected unit-credit method to determine the annual contributions. There are no employee
contributions to the plan. The Company's share of CHS annual pension cost was approximately
$114,800 and $109,700 for the years ended June 30, 2008 and 2007, respectfully.

CHS also has a defined contribution retirement pian under Section 401(k) of the Intemat
Revenue Cede covering all full-timie employees of CHS, including the Company. The plan is
funded by voluntary employee contributions and certain matching contributions by CHS. The
total expense for the Company for this plan was approximately $122,000 and $110,000 for the
years ended June 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company is subject to legal proceedings and claims which arise in the course of providing
health care services. The Company maintains malpractice insurance coverage for claims made
during the term of the policy. In the opinion of management, after consultation with legal
counsel, adequate provision has been made for amounts expected to be paid under the policy's
deductible limits for unasserted claims not covered by the policy and any other uninsured
liability.

{(14)



NOTE 6

NOTE 7

NOTE 8

UNION EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2008 AND 2007

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

The health care industry is subject to numerous laws and regulations of federal, state and local
governments. These laws and regulations include, but are not necessarily limited to, matters
such as licensure, accreditation, government health care program participation requirements,
reimbursement for patient services, and Medicare and Medicaid fraud and abuse. Recently,
government activity has increased with respect to investigations and allegations concerning
possible violations of fraud and abuse statues and regulations by health care providers.
Violations of these laws and regulations could result in expulsion from government heatth care
programs together with the impaosition of significant fines and penalties, as well as significant
repayments for patient services previously billed.

CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK

The Company places its temporary cash and investments with high credit quality financial
institutions. Attimes such cash and investments may be in excess of the FDIC insurance limits.
Management believes these financial institutions’ strong credit ratings results in only minimat
credit risk related to these deposits,

The Company also grants credit without collateral to its patients, most of whom are insured
under third-party payor agreements. The mix of receivables from patients and third-party
payors at June 30, 2008 and 2007 is as follows:

2008 2007
Medicare 20 % 18 %
Medicaid 8 26
Private and Other 72 56
100 % 100 %

CONCENTRATION OF RISK

During 2008 and 2007, the Company received approximately 55% and 58% of total revenues,
respectively, from appropriations from Union County. Any significant change in this funding
could result in a significant change to the operations of the Company.

(15)
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UNION EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES
RECONCILIATION OF REVENUE AND EXPENSES
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2008 AND 2007

This supplemental reconciliation of revenue and expenses is presented for purposes of reporting to Union
County and other governmental entities. The basis of accounting used in the preparation of this schedule
treats expenditures for capital assets as expenses.

2008 2007
Change in Net Assets § 28,452 % 289,588
Current Period Adjustments:
Depreciation 376,399 376,723
Expendilures for Property and Equipment {189,738} (549,317}
Cash from Sale of Property and Equipment - 9,080
(Gain) Loss on Sale of Property and Equipment 31 {(8,789)
Adjusted Change in Net Assets $ 215,144 $ 117,285
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Union Emergency Medical Services

April 21, 2009

Mr. Al Greene, County Manager
Union County

500 North Main St., Suite 901
Monroe, N.C. 28112

Mr. Greene,

In accordance with the Union EMS agreement, enclosed are the financial statements and
the detailed schedules on receivables and liabilities for the period ending March 31, 2009.
Please keep in mind when reviewing these statements and schedules that they are
prepared on a modified accrual basis. Thercfore, there will be timing differences from
this basis as compared 10 a cash basis.

The net collections rate continues to be improved over the base year due to the
implementation of an outside collection agency and improved claim management.

If you have any questions, please call me at 704-296-4095.

Sincerely,

Jeff Griffin
Controller, Accounting Services

cc: Michael Lutes, President CMC-Union
Scott Shew, Director of Union EMS
Kai Nelson, Union County Finance Director
Brent Lammers, Vice President, CMC-Union
John Moore, Vice President Finance, CMC-Union
Carl| Austin, Accounting Manager, CMC-Union

P.O. Box 633 » Monroe, NC 28111 » 704-226-2001  Fax: 704-226-2000




Union Emergency Medical Services
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UNION EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Paticnt accounts receivable - net
Other accounts reccivable
Inventories

Prepaid cxpenscs

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable

Encumbranced Capital

Other liabilities and accruals

Deferred revenue

Duc 10 affiliates

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

FUND BALANCE

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Balance Sheet

March 31, 2009
ASSETS
s
March 2009 Junc 2008 CHANGE

$2,243,176 §2,533,041 ($289,865)

608,493 580,995 27,497

17,236 24,677 (7.441)

0 0 0

45,316 14,454 30,862

2,914,221 3,153,168 (238.947)
52,914,221 $3,153,168 ($238,947)

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

$73,128 386,679 (813,551

0 0 0

138,428 127,236 11,192

0 0 0

306,882 306,590 292

518,438 520,505 {2,067)

2,395,783 2,632,663 - {236,880)
$2.914,221 §3,153,168 ($238,947)

These statements are prepared on a modified acerual basis and not prepared in accordance with GAAP,

Unaudited Financial Statements
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UNION EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
For the Month Ended March 31, 2009

CURRENT MONTH YEAR-TO-DATE
Y %
ACTUAL BUDGET  CHANGE ACTUAL BUDGET  CHANGE
REVENUE

$387,71! $357,432 8% Emergency Revenue $3,172,235 $3,216,888 -1%
153,008 147,466 4% Non-Emergency Revenue 1,292,781 1,327,200 -3%
340,719 504,898 % TOTAL PATIENT REVENUE 4,465,016 4,544,088 “2%
273,955 253,221 8% TOTAL REVENUE DEDUCTIONS 2,262,415 2,278,989 -1%
206,764 251,677 6% NETPATIENT REVENUE 2,202,601 2,265,099 -3%
296,193 342,074 -13% County Funding Reverue' 2,065,741 3,078,663 -13%
10 1,417 -99%  OTHER OPERATING REVENUE 16,686 12,750 31%
562,967 595,168 -5% TOTAL OFERATING REVENUE 4,885,028 5,356,512 -9%

OPERATING EXPENSES

138,456 332,363 2% Solaries & Waoges 2,962,546 2,991,267 -1%
112,608 114,495 -2% Benefits 967,574 1,030,454 -0%
451,064 446,858 1% TOTAL PERSONNEL 3,930,120 4,021,721 -2%
15,974 17,054 -0% Supplics 137,857 153,495 -10%
1,743 1,930 -5% Proflessional Fees 30,643 315,368 -13%
27,305 27,483 1% Purchased Services 254,683 247,348 3%
14,213 11,112 28% Insurance 103,511 100,009 4%
5.599 5,838 4% Utilities 46,740 52,519 -11%
32,881 42,413 «22% Other Operating Expense 352,579 381,715 -8%
530,778 554,688 -1%  TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 4,856,113 4,992,195 -3%
12,189 40,480 S70% RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 28,893 364,317 -02%

NON-OPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSE)

{383) 5,400 -107% Interest {ncome 6,639 48,605 -86%

1} 0 0% Cash from Sale of Fixed Assels 0 0 %%

0 0 0% CGrant Revenue [} 0 %%

0 0 0% Grant Funded Capital 1] 0 0%
(74,836) (45.8580) 100% \v"ehic:les/F,quipmf:nll (272,412) (412,922) 100%%
(74,536) (45.880)  100% Non-Orperating Expense - Capital Total (272,412) (412,922)  100%
{75,219} (40,4%0) B6%  TOTAL NON-OPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSE) (265,773) (364,317y -27%
(563.030) {30) 100%% TOTAL MARGIN (3236,880) 30 100%

" 2008-2009 County funding was reduced by amount of budgeted capital expenditures.

These statements are prepared on a modified acerual basis and not prepared In accordance with GAAP.
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UNION EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES
Statements of Cash Flows of the General Fund
For the Month Ended March 31, 2009

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash Received from Patients
Cash Received from Union County
Cash Paid for Goods and Services
Cash Paid to Employecs for Services

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activitics

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATING
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash Reccived lrom Grants
Purchases of Properly and Equipment
Proceeds from Sale of Propeny and Equipment
Net Cash Used in Capital and Related Financing Activitics

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest Income
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and Equivalents at Beginning of Year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET
CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating Income
Adjustments te Reconcile Operating Income to Cash
Provided by Operaling Activities:
Deprecration
Changes in:
(Increase) Decrease in Patient Account Receivable, Nel
(Decrease) Increase in Due to Carolinas Healthcare System
Changc in Other Operaling Assets and Liabilities
Nel Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Mar¢h-09 Y-T-D 2009
293,362 2,220,099
- 2,665,741
(233,257} (1,931,938}
(506,990) (2,977,993
(444,884) {24,092)
(74,836) (272,412)
{74,836) (272,412)
(383) 6,639
(383) 6,619
(520,103) (289,865)
2,763,279 2,533,041
2,243,176 2,243,176
§12,189 $28.,893
23,227 (27,497)
(194,156} 292
(286,144) (25,780)
(444,384) {24,092)

These statements are prepared on a modified accrual basis and not prepared in accordance with GAAP.

Unaudited Financial Statemants
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Gross Patient A/R
Other A/R

Total Receivables

Allowance
Net Receivables

Vendor Payables
Accrued Payables
Other Liabilities
Due to Affiliates

Total Liabilities

Union Emergency Medical Services

MARCH 2009

Quarterly Report on Receivables

0-30 31-60 61-90 91-120 over 120 Total
$481,796 $289,530 $227,004 $95,808 $314,170 $1,408,308
$17,236 $0 $0 $0 $0 $17,236
$499,032! $289,530] $227,004] $95,808| $314,170 $1,425,544
($799,815)
$625,729

Total adjusted  Net adjusted

Total Collection Collection

Billed Rate Rate
[Base Year $1,002,042 38% 56% |
Quarter Ending Sept. 2008 $1,456,627 48% 87%
Quarter Ending Dec. 2008 $1,468,866 47% 104%
Quarter Ending March 2009 $1,538,082 51% 98%
Fiscal Year to Date $4,464,474 49% 97%
Variance from Base Year 11% 41%

Quarterly Report on Payables

“iRging.of Rayables:

0-30 31-60 61-90 91-120 over 120 Total
$73,128 50 $0 $0 50 $73,128
$0 50 $0 50 $0 $0
$138,428 50 50 $0 $0 $138,428
$306,882 50 $0 $0 $306,882
$518,438 50 $0 50 $0 $518,438
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DATE

Jan-09
Feb-09
Mar-09
Mar-09

Union Emergency Medical Services

For the Quarter Ending March 31, 2009

Fixed Assets and Vehicle Acquisitions
{Exceeding $3000}

Qry DESCRIPTION

3 Lifepak Defibrillators
16 Lifepak Defibrillators Upgrades
1 Ambulance, Remounted
1 Emergency Equipment Package for QRY

Disposition of Fixed Assets and Vehicles (Book Value)

None to Report

AMOUNT

3 64,126.00
7,785.00
69,924 .64
4,911.00

$146,746.64
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Union Emergency Medical Services

Report of Amounts Applied Toward Insurance Deductibles

MARCH 2009

“Date

Totél Amount

‘Amount Not

"'Claim's 'Recovery from\
Number of Loss of Loss Insurance Comgany | Covered by insurance
None to Report
Totals $0 $0 50
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AGENDA ITEM #10
MEETING DATE: 6/1/2009

UNION COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
RESOLUTION OF SUPPORT FOR CAROLINA THREAD TRAIL

WHEREAS, Union County Government is committed to maintaining and enhancing
quality of life for its citizens and recognizes that the Carolina Thread Trail will contribute to
quality of life by weaving together communities via a regional network of trails and greenways,
eventually connecting fifteen counties and millions of citizens; and

WHEREAS, many communities in our region have taken a lead in planning and/or
building local trails and greenways, and those efforts can be greatly enhanced by being
connected to a larger regional network of trails; and

WHEREAS, trails and their green buffer areas will help improve the quality of the air we
breathe by preserving trees and vegetation and by promoting non-motorized transportation, and
will enhance the quality of our water through natural buffers and mitigation of storm water run-
off’ and

WHEREAS, trails and greenways provide key amenities to neighborhoods and safe areas
for our citizens and children to travel, exercise, play and connect with nature away from heavily
trafficked areas; and

WHEREAS, trails have significant impact on the economic viability of the region
through increased levels of tourism, enhanced property values, added jobs related to the
construction of and aleng the trail, as well as enhanced ability to attract and retain businesses to
the region due to improved quality of life; and

WHEREAS, trails and greenways are frecly accessible community assets offering
opportunities for recreation and exercise to everyone, including children, youth and families, and
provide safe places for people to experience a sense of community and create stronger social and
family ties; and

WHEREAS, there is no second chance to protect the Carolinas’ great resources in this
unique way for our children, grandchildren and great grandchildren, and the cost of these
invaluable resources will only increase in the future; and

WHEREAS, private funding is available to communities from the Carolina Thread Trail
for planning and construction of regional trails, and this private funding will leverage public
funding from federal, state and various sources.



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Union County Board of
Commissioners supports the Carolina Thread Trail and is committed in concept to working with
neighboring communities and with the Carolina Thread Trail to plan, design and build a system
of trails that will connect our communities, people and special regional points of interest for
years to come; provided, however, that the Union County Board of Commissioners expressly
rejects the use of eminent domain for acquisition of property to be used for trails and commits to
call for and conduct a public hearing prior to adoption or approval of any plan for the design and
construction of a system of trails in Union County.

Adopted this 1*' Day of June, 2009.

Attest:

Lynn West, Clerk to the Board Lanny Openshaw, Chairman
Union County Board of Commissioners Union County Board of Commissioners



?2ENDA.ITEM
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FIRST AMENDMENT TO
74x UNION COUNTY REGIONAL TRANSIT SERVICE CONTRACT
BETWEEN THE
CITY OF CHARLOTTE
AND
UNION COUNTY

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE 74X UNION COUNTY REGIONAL TRANSIT
SERVICE CONTRACT (the “Amendment”) is made and entered into as of

, by and between the City of Charlotte, a North Carolina municipal
corporation (the “City”), and Union County a North Carolina municipal corporation doing
business in North Carolina (hereinafter “Union County”).

Statement of Background and Intent

A. The City and Union County entered into the Union County Regional Transit Service
Contract dated July I, 2008 (the “Contract™) pursuant to which the City agreed to
provide regional transit services to Union County.

B. The parties now desire to amend the Contract to reflect an increase in the contract annual
total amount to three hundred and sixty-two thousand and four hundred and seventy-nine
dollars {$362,479.00). The net of total less farebox revenue is two hundred and thirty

thousand, six hundred and twenty-three dollars ($230,623.00), fifty-percent of which is to
be retmbursed to CATS by Union County.

C. This is the final year of the CMAQ grant for which the town of Marshville was awarded.
The final grant year is June 1, 2009 thru June 30, 2010. This year grant total is forty-nine

thousand five hundred and eight dollars ($49,508) which will be directly paid to the City
of Charlotte.

D. The City and Union County will each pay fifty percent of the net cost afier fare revenue
and CMAQ revenue.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements contained
herein, the parties hereby amend the Contract as follows:

AGREEMENT

I. Section 3.2 of the Contract is amended to state that Union County shall pay to the City of
Charlotte: ninety thousand five hundred and fifty-seven dollars, ($90,557.00) on an
annual basis in monthly installments of seven thousand, five hundred and forty-six
dollars ($7,546.00) starting July 1st, 2009, until June 30™, 2010.



2. Except to the extent specifically provided above, this Amendment shall not be interpreted
or construed as waiving any rights, obligations, remedies or claims the parties may
otherwise have under the Contract.

3. In all other respects and except as modified herein, the terms of the Contract shall remain
in force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOPF, and in acknowledgement that the parties hereto have read and
understood each and every provision hereof, the parties have caused this Amendment to be
executed as of the date first written above.

WITNESS: CITY OF UNION COUNTY
BY: BY:

TITLE: TITLE:

CITY OF CHARLOTTE:

BY:

TITLE:

This instrument has been preaudited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget
and Fiscal Control Act.

City's Finance Officer Date



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA UNION COUNTY REGIONAL TRANSIT SERVICE

COUNTY OF MECKLENBURG CONTRACT NO: 0800897

SERVICES CONTRACT
July
THIS SERVICES CONTRACT (the "Contract”) is made and entered into as of Awgmas=1 2008 (the "Effective
Date"), by and between Union County, a municipal corporation organized under the laws of the State of North
Carolina {hereinafter "Union County"), and the City of Charlotte, a municipal corporation organized under the
laws of the State of North Carolina (hereinafter "the City"), through the Charlotte Area Transit System
(hereinafter "CATS")

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the City operates and provides, through CATS and/or its contractor, public transit service within
Meckienburg County thereby reducing vehicular traffic on the roadways in Mecklenburg County, North Caroling,
and

WHEREAS, the parties desire to commence regional transit service between Charlotie and Union Gounty in
accordance with the CATS Mission, Objective and Financial Policies and upon other terms and conditions as
agreed upon by the parties; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to North Caroclina General Statute 160A-461, the parties may enter into Interlocal
Agreements to jointly undertake public enterprises such as the provision of regiona! fransit service.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants, terms and conditions hereinafter set forth, the partles
hereby agree as follows:

CONTRACT

1. INCORPORATION OF EXHIBITS. The following Exhibits are attached to this Contract and are
incorporated into and made a part of this Contract by reference:

Exhibit A: Regional Express Service Schedule
Exhibit B: Regional Express Service Operating Gosts

Each reference to this Contract shall be deemed to include all Exhibits. Any confiict between fanguage

in an Exhibit or Appendix and language in the main body of this Contract shall be resclved in favor of
the main body of this Contract.

2. DESCRIPTION OF WORK.
SERVICE. The City, in consultation with Union County, shall establish apprapriate service routes and
schedules and shall define such other components related to the service to be provided pursuant to this
Contract. The proposed service schedule is attached as Exhibit A.

The purpose of this Agreement is to set forth terms and conditions by which Chariotte, acting through
CATS, will provide Regional Transit Service between Charlotte and Union County and to ensure such

service shall be provided consistent and in accordance with the CATS Mission, Objectives and
Financial Policies

3, COMPENSATION.

31 The estimated project costs and estimated financial commitment of the parties are set forth in
Exhibit B, and said attachment is incorporated herein by reference as if fully set forth in this
section; provided, each party's final and total financial commitment to the project shall be

CITY OF CHARLOTTE UNION COUNTY REGIONAL EXPRESS SERVICE

e B



determined and calculated on the basis of each party's proportional share of the actua!l costs of
the service, as each party's proportional share is set forth in Exhibit B,

3.2 Union County shall be obligated to pay an amount equat to fifty percent {50%) of the mutualty
agreed- upon operating costs of $360,850 of the regional transit service as outlined in Exhibit
B. The parties acknowiedge that the Town of Marshville appiled for and has been awarded a
CMAQ grant in the amount of approximately $43,734, which will be paid directly to the City.
Union County shall pay the City in equal monthly instaliments of $8,878.00, beginning August 1,
2008 though July 1, 2009, At the end of each fiscal year (July1-June 30), CATS shall conduct a
reconciliation of the actual cost incurred and farebox revenue received compared to the
estimated costs and revenug, If the difference between actual operating costs and the
estimated costs is egual to or greater than plus or minus ten percent (10%), the party bearing
less than fifty percent (50%) of the actual costs shall pay the difference to the other party. Any
reconciliation completed at the end of the fiscal year shall e identified within sixty (60) days of
the compietion of fiscal year 2009.

3.3 TOTAL FEES AND CHARGES. Union County agrees to pay the City at the rate set forth in
Exhibit B. The amount in Exhibit B constitutes the maximum fees and charges payable to the
City under this Contract and will not be increased except by a written amendment duly executed
by both parties. The rates set forth in Exhibit B shall remain firm for the duration of this
Contract, unless otherwise stated in Exhibit B.

4. INVOICES.
The City shall submit invoices to Union County on a monthly basis, uniess otherwise agreed to by the
parties. Union County shall remit payment to the City within thirty (30) days of receiving each monthly
invoice, Union Gounty shall remit all payments to:

City of Charlotte

Atftention: Finance/Accounting
B00 East Fourth Street, 10™ Fioor
Charlotte, NC 28202

5, ADMINISTRATION.
Each party shall designate a project administrator to oversee the administration of this Agreement. The
project administrators shall be responsibie for the coordination, management and oversight of the
project necessary to accomplish the objectives of this joint undertaking between the parties. Until the
parties give written notice otherwise, the project administrators are:

For Charlotte: For Union County:
Mr. Larry Kopf
Charlotte Area Transit System Union County Public Works
600 East Fourth Street 500 North Main St, Suite 500
Charlotte, NC 28202 Monroe, NG 28112
Telephone: 704-432-0497 Telephone: 704-
Fax: 704-353-0797 Fax 704-296-4232
Email: [kopf@ci.charlotte nc.us Email:

6. SERVICE QUALITY,

The parties agree that the objective of the Union County Regional Transit Service is to operate in a
manner that (i) is safe, refiable, efficient and effective and (i) maximizes potential ridership. To ensure
quality service and to promote effective communications, the parties will meet at regular intervals.

CITY OF CHARLGTTE UNION COUNTY REGIONAL EXPRESS SERVICE



7. TERMINATION. auly _
7.1 TERM. This Agreement ie effective Lwgeed 1, 2008 and shall remain in effect unti! e 30, 2009

with the option by the city and Union County to extend the Agreemenl for up to four (4)

additional one-yeal terms subject 1o the evaluation of the costs of the service and the annual

appropriation of funds for the service by each city. Any such extension shall require & writlen

amendment to this Agreement Int. A’U(f’

7.2 TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE, Either party may terminate this Contract al any time
withou! cause upon sixty (60) days written notice te the other party. In case of termination for
convenience by Uniors County the parties shall negotiate an equitable settiement of termination
costs. If Union County elects to terminate its subsidy with respect to any portion of the service
provided under this Contract on at leas! sixty (80) days written notice, this Contracl shall
terminate for convenience as to such service at the end of that period.

7.3 TERMINATION FOR DEFAULT. By written notice the City may terminate this Contracl for
default in the event Union County fails to pay an-overdue invoice within thirty (30} days after
receiving written notice from the City that: (i) such invoice is overdue, and (i) the City intends to
exercise its right to terminate this Contract pursuant to this Section in the event it is nol paid
within said thirty (30) day period. The City may exercise the option to resume service upon
such terms and conditions as the parties may agree in writing. The City shall not be obligated to
resume service after a termination for default of this Contract. The City may resume service
only to the extent that the resumption of service is consisteni with the CATS Financial ang
Service Policies, a5 those policies may be amanded, ,

7.4  NO EFFECT ON TAXES, FEES, CHARGES OR REPORTS. Temnination of this Contract shail
not reieve Union County of the obligation to pay any fees, taxes or other charges then due to
the City; to fite any daily, monthly, quarterly or annual reports; or reiieve Union County from any

- claim for damages previously accrued or then accruing against Union County,

7.5 AUTHORITY TO TERMINATE. The foliowing persons are authorized to terminate this Contract
on behalf of the City: (2) the City Manager, any Assistant City Manager or any designee of the
City Manager, (b) the Kay Businass Executive of the City Key Business Unit responsible for
administering this Contract. Termination by Union County shall require action by the Union
County Board of Commissioners,

’ N
B, NOTICES AND PRINCIPAL CONTACTS.

Any notice, consent or other communication reguired or contemplated by this Confract shall be in

writing, and shall be delivered in person, by U.5. mail, by overnight courier, by electronic mail or by

telefax to the intended recipient at the address set forth below: ‘ :

jzor Chariotte; ‘ For Union County:
Brittney D, Bishop , Christire-Putrarr Ay Belns
Charlotte Area Transit System ' Union County Pubiic Works O
600 East Fourtp Strest BNt Shomet-3t 500 N. Main St., Suite 500
Charlotte, NC 28202 Monroe, NG 28112
Telephone; 704-353-0077 Telephone: TOFZEZ258T  704-283-3520
Fax, 704-353-0797 Fax: 704-256-4232
Email: bbishop@ci.charlcite.nc.Us Emall, ehesmfeer-geiomre-s amyithelns@co . unior.ne. us

Communications thal relate to any breach, defaull, fermination, delay in performance, prevention of [nt/’!i-u._;c’:___
performance, modification, extension, amendment, or waiver of any provision of this Contract shall
further be copied to the following (in addition to being sent to the individuals specified above):

CITY NE CHARI OTTE ) . LINION COUNTY REGIONAL EXPRESS SERVICE



For Charlotte: For Union County:

CATS Attorney Jeff Crook

City of Charlotte Attorney’s Office Union County Legal Department
800 East Fourth Streat 500 North Main Street, Room 826
Charlotte, NC 28202 Monroe, NC 28112

Telephone: 704-283-3873

Fax: 704-292-2506

Email:

Notice shall be effective upon the date of receipt by the intended recipient; provided that any notice that
is sent by facsimile or electronic maif shall also be simultansously sent by mail deposited with the U.S.
Postal Service or by overnight courier. Each party may change its address for notification purposes by
giving the other pary written notice of the new address and the date upon which it shall become
effective.

8.1

8.2

9.3

94

8.5

86

MISCELLANEOUS.

ENTIRE CONTRACT. This Contract is the entire agreement between the parties with respect
to its subject matter, and there are no other representations, understandings, or agreements
between the parties with respect to such subject matter. This Contract supersedes all prior
agreements, negotiations, representations and proposals, written or oral. The City reserves the
right to evaluate and modify or terminate the service in accordance with adopted CATS
Financial and Service Policies, as those policies may be amended from time to time.

AMENDMENT. Both parties have the right to amend this contract within the guidelines set
forth, No amendment or change to this Contract shall be valid unless in writing and signed by
both parties to this Contract.

GOVERNING LAWY, JURISDICTION AND VENUE. North Carolina law shall govern the
interpretation and enforcement of this Contract and any other matters relating to this Contract
(all without regard to North Carolina confiicts of law principles). Any and all legal actions or
proceedings relating to this Contract shall be brought in a state or federal court sitting in
Macklenburg County, North Carolina. By the execution of this Contract, the parties submit to
the jurisdiction of said courts and hereby irrevocably waive any and all objections that they may
have with respect to venue in any court siiting in Mecklenburg County, North Carolina. This
Section shall not apply to subsequent actions to enforce a judgment entered in actions heard
pursuant to this Section.

BINDING NATURE AND ASSIGNMENT. This Contract shall bind the paries and their
successors and permitted assigns. Neither party may assign this Contract without the prior
written consent of the other. Any assignment attempted without the written consent of the other
party shall be void.

CITY NOT LIABLE FOR SPECIAL OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES. The City shall not be
liable to Union County its agents, or representatives or any subcontractor for or on accouni of
any stoppages or delay In the performance of any obligations of the City, or any other
consequential, indirect or special damages or lost profits related to this Contfact.

SEVERABILITY. Tne invalidity of one or more of the phrases, sentences, clauses or sections
contained in this Contract shall not affect the validity of the remaining portion of the Contract so
long as the material purposes of the Confract can be determined and effectuated. If any
provision of this Contract is held to be unenforceable, then both parties shall be relieved of all
obligations arising under such provision, but only to the extent that such provision is
unenforceable, and this Contract shall be deemed amended by modifying such provision to the

CITY OF CRARLOTTE UNION COUNTY REGIONAL EXPRESS SERVICE




9.7

9.8

8.8

g.10

9.11

9.12

813

9.14

extenl necessary to make it enforceable while preserving its intent.

NO PUBLICITY. No advertising, sales promotion or other materials of Union County or its
agents or representations may identify or reference this Contract or the City in any manner
absent the written consent of the City. Notwithstanding the forgoing, the parties agree that
Union County may list the City as a reference in responses to requests for proposals, and may
identify the City as a customer in presentations t¢ potential customers,

REPORTS. The City andfor its contractor shall maintain service-related records, including
ridership numbers, in such formats as the parties may agree. Such records shall be avaiiable to
Union County for examination and inspection upon request or according to any scheduled
reporting periods to which the parties may agree.

APPROVALS. All approvals or consents required under this Contract must be in writing.

WAIVER. Nc waiver of any provision of this Contract shall be effective uniess in writing and
signed by the party waiving the rights. No delay or omission by either party to exercise any right
or remedy it has under this Contract shall impair or be construed as a waiver of such right or
remedy. A waiver by either party of any covenant or breach of this Contract shall not constitute
or operate as a waiver of any succeeding breach of that covenant or of any other covenant.

SURVIVAL OF PROVISIONS. All provisions of this Contract which by their nature and effect
are reguired 1o be observed, kept or performed after termination of this Contract shall survive
the termination of this Contract ana remain binding thereafter, including but not limited to the
following

Section 7 "Termination”
Section 8.4 "No Effect on Taxes, Fees, Charges, or Reports”
Section 9 "Indemnification”
Section 10 “Notices”
Section 11 "Miscellaneous”
The parties
FAMI ¥ AND COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND ORDINANCES. omierSeurty agreeg to

make aware of and comply with all Ioca,h_etate gnd federal ordinances, s%’g%:r’es, laws, rules

and regulations applicable to the Work. further agregf that it at all times
during the term of this Contract be in compliance with all applicable federal, state andior local
laws regarding employment practices. Such iaws will include, but shall not be limited to workers'
compensation, the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA), the Americans with Disabiiities Act (ADA),
the Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA) ana all OSHA regulations applicable to the work

CONSTRUCTION OF TERMS. Each of the parties has agread to the use of the partlcu\ar
language of the provisions of this Contract and any questions of doubtful interpretation shall not
be resolved by any rule or interpretation against the drafters, but rather in accordance with the
fair meaning thereof, having due regard to the benefits and rights intended to be conferred upon
the parties hereto and the fimitations and restrictions upon such rights and benefits intended to
be provided.

RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES. The relationship of the parties established by this Contract
is solely that of independent contractors. Nothing contained in this Contract shall be construed
o {i) give any party the power to direct or control the day-to-day administrative activities of the
other; or (i) constitute such parties as partners, co-owners or otherwise as participants in a joint
venture. Neither party nor its agents or employees is the representative of the other for any
purpose, and neither party has power or authority to act for, bind, or otherwise create or assume
any obligation on behalf of the other,

CITY OF CHARLOTTE UNION COUNTY REGIONAL EXPRESS SERVICE
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IN WITNESS WHEREQF, and in acknowledgment that the parties harsto have read and understood each and
svery provision hereof, the parties have caused this Contract to be executed on the date first written above,

ATTESTED: UNION COUWV——/
BY: /%W ) W BY:
4 V
TITLE: Clerk to the Board of Commissioners 77 g. / o Jﬁ’L o }/1’10,\_ ¢ o
I] o

approvED AS ToLecAL Foru (21

CITY OF CHARLOTTE:

- /f/// Y/

This instrument has been preauditad in the manner required by the Locat Government Budget and Fiscal
Control Act.

@u,\c@:-q @eQ‘r—v-;—-e_\ Q’AL‘/CP

DEPUTY FINANCE OFFICER DATE

CITY OF CHARLOTTE UNION COUNTY REGIONAL EXPRESS SERVICE



EXHIBIT A
ROUTE 74x - UNION COUNTY REGIONAL TRANSIT SERVICE

REGIONAL EXPRESS SERVICE SCHEDULE
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CITY OF CHARLOTTE UNION COUNTY REGIONAL EXPRESS SERVICE



EXHIBITB

ROUTE 74x - UNION COUNTY REGIONAL TRANSIT SERVICE

REGIONAL EXPRESS OPERATING COSBTS

FY 2009 Operating Cost

ol . dRare-

‘ evenue
iEstimate

Lo omag
Ne‘,@f’?t ' LOontrlbution

| PartnerCost |

———
$103,8961 $256,?54i $43,734 $1086,510

L

© PaymentAmount .

- ¥

August 1, 2008

L 58,876 |
September 1, 2008 | $8,876

B October 1, 2008 $8,876
L November 1, 2008 $8,876
L December 1, 2008 | $8,876 |
B January 1, 2009 | $8,876
’ February 1, 2008 $8,876
, March 1,2009 | $8,876

April 1, 2009 $8,876

May 4, 2009 $8.876
L June 1, 2009 $8,876

CITY OF CHARLOTTE

July 1, 2008

Int. M

UNION COUNTY REGIONAL EXFPRESS SERVICE



AGENDA ITEM #13
MEETING DATE: 6/1/2009

RESOLUTION TO CLARIFY THE UNION COUNTY POLICY
ON FUNDING NONPROFIT CORPORATION CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS

Whereas, pursuant to N.C.G.S. § 153A-101, the Union County Board of Commissioners has and
shall exercise the responsibility of developing and directing the fiscal policy of the county
government; and

Whereas, the citizens and taxpayers expect a full accounting of all funds expended by the county
government to provide needed goods and services, including those services provided pursuant to
contract between Union County and those nonprofit corporations that receive 50% or more of
their annual funding by appropriation from Union County (the “Nonprofit Corporations™); and

Whereas, the Board of Commissioners recognizes the valuable services provided to citizens of
Union County by the Nonprofit Corporations; and

Whereas, the Board of Commissioners further recognizes the periodic need for capital
improvements and additions to infrastructure by the Nonprofit Corporations in order to maintain
or improve the level of service they provide.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Union County Board of Commissioners as
follows:

1. The Board wishes to reaffirm their appreciation and commitment to the Nonprofit
Corporations, which provide important and necessary services.

2. As required by statute, the Board must perform its fiduciary duty and oversight of
the budgetary process and expenditure of taxpayer funds.

3. The Board, in order to accomplish its responsibility, shall require all capital

improvements or capital expenditures, as defined in OMB Circular A-122 Cost
Principles for Non-Profit Organizations, exceeding $10,000 be submitted for
approval by the Board of County Commissioners prior to any funds being
committed to said project or expenditure.

4, Furthermore, should a Nonprofit Corporation contractually commit itself to the
acquiring of property or incurring of debt, which cost would typically add to the
Nonprofit Corporation’s budgetary support from the County, without the express
act by the Board of County Commissioners prior to the acquisition of property or
incurring of debt, Union County will be less likely to view favorably any request
for increased funding by the Nonprofit Corporation to fund said property or debt.

Approved and adopted the day of , 2009. 1, the undersigned, hereby
certify that the foregoing Resolution was duly adopted by the Union County Board of County
Commissioners.



Clerk to the Union County Board of County Commissioners



AGENDA ITEM

# 14

MEETING DATE __Lo 11l 04
White Oak of Waxhaw ¥

Gerald Cox west 06/28/2009 12:30 PM
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Ms. West:

Please see below my comments regarding the upcoming County Commissioner’s

meeting on Monday, June 1", Let's not overlook the real priority and that is serving the
needs of the elderly in Union County with a state of the art facility, which will truly be a
facility like no other in Union County.

In preparation for the upcoming County Commissioners meeting on Monday, June 1" 1
have attached additional information I feel needs to be considered at the meeting.

As you will note from the attached pictures, we are not just moving dirt, we are
currently under construction at this location.

The attached executed Agreement from the Department of Transportation, signed by
your representatives Al Greene and Lynn West, grants the right to connect to the & inch
water main.

Also, enclosed is a Permitting timeline outlining steps taken and completed, which was
required by the Department of Public Works in order to receive the water permit. In
our opinion we have completed everything Union County Public Works requested us to
do to receive the water permit, which makes our project unique from the other projects.
We are a victim of being caught between policy changes and not being advised
properly. As you can see by the attachments progress is being made and we have spent
$2.5 million to date.

It is hard for me to believe that Union County and the Town of Waxhaw does not need
120 new jobs. By not receiving water on a timely basis we will be forced to suspend this
project which in turn leaves 45 local construction workers unemployed. If we suspend
this project, our Certificate of Need will be at risk. Let's not forget the excess of
$100,000 annually that will be paid in property taxes to the Town of Waxhaw and Union
County while providing an entity that does not burden your schools, roads, crime rate
and will be an environmentally friendly business.

As always, 1 am available to speak with you and/or any interested party to answer
questions regarding the facts presented and our desire to move this project forward.
We hope the meeting on Monday will have a positive outcome and we can proceed with
construction in completing the iong term care facility for the elderly citizens of Union



County.

I am asking for your favorable consideration in resolving the water issue at the Monday,

June 1° County Commissioner’s meeting. If you have any questions, please do not
hesitate to contact me at 252-443-6265 or by cell at 252-903-8384.

Gerald P. Cox
-
Ea ! N i H
WaxHAW DOT.pdl pemittingtimeline waxhaw.doc ‘Waxhaw.Entrance JPG W axhaw.building2./PG W axhaw. building3.1PG
o -
k. |'.-£| E

Waxhaw. buiIding.JPG ‘Waxhaw building pipes2.JPG  ‘Waxhaw.Diive JPG
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Nov 8 2008
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA ' ANPBELL DONPAN
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION-
MicHazL F, EASLEY ' DIVISION OF HIGHWAYS W LvNDO 'Izrzn
o 0CT 30 2008 St
Mr. Ben F, Campbell
White QOak of Waxhaw, LLC
P.O. Box 7728
chky Mount,-NC 27804

- Subject: Utility Encrodchment Cohtract — Propoqed 6 inch vrater tain connection on SR-
1008 (Waxhaw Indian Trafl Rd) in Union County.

Encroachment Number; 08-143-U
Dear Mr. Campbell:

Enclosed is an executed copy of the subject encfoachmem contract. This encroachment is
approved subject to the attached provisions.

If you have any questions about these special provisions,' please contact Mr. John
Underwood, District Engineer, or M. Stan Broek, Transportation Technician IV, at (704)
289-1397 in Monroe, .

Sincerely, .
me Merary§0
B.S se, P.E,
Division Engineer
BSM/sgh
Attachment

cc: Mr. R. J. Memory
Mr. Johtt Underwood, District Engineer
Mz, David Gillette, County Mamtenance Engineer
Mr. Al Greene
File

716 West Moin Strovt, Albomarfe, NC 2800) »  Office (704) 9820101 o  Fax (704)982-3146
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.o . STATEOF __{TH CAROLINA
HOUTE  Waxhswindion Tral PROJECT .__/hiie CakManorsf COUNTYOF  Union -
. R - , 4 2o Warhaw

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION. - C w0 % THREE PARTY RIGHT OF WAY \
' ’ ENCROAGHMENT AGREEMENT ON
-AND- .
| White Osk of Waxhaw LLC RIMARY AND SEGONDARY
P.0. Box 7728, Rocky Mount, N.C. 27804 ~—
~AND-
Union Gounty O 8 1 43 '

500 N. Maln Street, Monfoe, M.C. 28112

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered Into (his the 32 day of €7, , 2008, by and betweon the Department of
mmﬁm  party of the first parl; and White Oak of Wasxhaw L1.C, parly of the saeond part; and Unlon County, pivty of ihe
part, . .

v—r

WITNESSETH ' .

THAT WHERAS, the party of the second part desires to encroach on the right of way of the public road desionaled as
Routs S.R. 1008 , located I ynion County, N.C. with the corstrvction andior erection of. & 6" watermain aoonecticu
dn Waxhaw-Indian Trail Road (SR 1008) a» ghown om the attached plans.

WHEREAS, It is to the materisl advaniage of e parly of.the second part lo effect this éncroachment, andihekgrtyol
the first part i the exeircixe of authority confarred upon it by ststuie, ia wifing to parmit the encroachment within the fmits of the
right of way 2 IntRioated, subject io the cordione of thie sgreement;

NOW, THEREFORE, IT 18 AGREED that the pwufﬂnﬂmtpmhmbygramehthﬂmtyolﬂwsmdpan tha right
and privilege 1o make thic encroachmont as showmn on attached pian shewl{s), specifications and speciat pravisiona which are:
mexds B part hereul dpoh the following conditions, to wit:

That tha Inntellation, and meinienence of tw sbava described Eaniity whl be accompiahind In ocordancs with tho perty of
the first parts latest : FOR Al ODATING UTHTIES QN HIGHWAY, RIGHTE QFINAY. snd aich
revialona thateto na tay b 1h offect & e nt, Informafion 50 i heee police

ard
meay ba oblained from ihe Diviaion Enginet or State Uty Agent of the perty of the St part

'I'hatlhlmddwm'ofhmmm'ﬂnﬂmdwmhmmw‘ndmnmmmwmmylnawhaahmd
proper conedhtion thet it will not Intérfene with or andengor beve! ubon zakd highway, nor obulruot RoF Interfere with the popsr malnienancs
thermol, [ raimburee the ey of tha fited part kor the cant inctied for any of mainfenance {3 Mo roadways and sttoturen
) mmmmmrmmwmemmmafammmm The recond part, aind It ol awy time the party of tha fret pert
rhol the rembwa) of or charmges In the losetion of the said facifilies, tist e snkd porty of e seocnd part binda himseli, ki
“guccossom myd wnsigne, io prompiy remove or alter e said flitios, jn order (6 conform to the gald regutrsment, without any won! to te
party of the s part, - & - « \
sional Tights,

Tﬁdﬂunﬂﬁhumpﬂdmb;lmlﬂednhgmmw suABEqUONt molNEN0e Proper olons, s
mmmmmmmhmmﬂmhmm#ﬂﬂm piagusl ofy o YrefR ot LA
for Siree anet Amencmests or & tharatn. informalion sa o ths shove nitee and reguistisrs mey ba ob
rrw the Divislon Enginecs of the party of tha first part

Thal the perty of tho secamd per herchy agrees 16 Mdemnity and seva harmiegs the ormmp-tim-nummw
dn@lufwdnn-gun-tmaymhvaemﬁh insidlaiion and moinfsnance mmsaﬁ:ymn,

Thet Gra of tho second pant agraen 1o restors of arban disturbed durig Instalistion anttmeintanance 1o theealithattion of the ™

. Mn&mﬁm‘mmmwmﬁamm of ha necond patt agrens {0 exerclod every reananable procaution durihg
oonetruction ard makibnance to prevent aroting of sof; ellling or tivern, streime, laktes, rosorviie, other water
impoundmanis, ground suriacar or ofhny propsiy; or pollution of the ale, Therm ehall be mmmmmmmmmm‘

' ofthe Nomth Darcling Division of Envirormantal Managemsnt, Nerth Caroline Sedimentation Goritrol Gommisclon, and st crdinandas .
and raguintions of various counties, mimicipaties end other officl] agnncies oialing to potiaiion prevantion snd control, Vihen any
inatelletion ormakvienance operation ﬂﬂmtmdmllm.m gover, e party of tha second part agrees lo
:ﬁmmmmmheuumh 6 reasinnfish 1o (rase sover fo satiztretioh af the Divislon Enginoer of the party of he

That the parly of tha mecond pert sgreas 1o seaume tha f the: work et {0 be the
ﬂmmﬂllhebwlyo!ﬂn;rglpng umﬂ oaliuel coat of eny repeatich of the considered 10 be nodessery by

Thet the of thu madord port sgroes lo have avalebte at the construelion aita, at ull tise during conatrvtion, m copy of thin
areement avidenca of nppraval bry the party of the et nart. ‘Tha party of the firel pan! resarven the fighi to stop &l work unlaes :
nvkisneo of approval can be shown,

Providad ha wark contalnad in s ngreemant fs bofng parformod ok o campleted highway apen o tralfic; the of the second
agreas {o give wiitlen motice Lo the UNthnE,nghnrumumdmhﬂmmnmmmmwmnmnmmm
E;l;:umdnwnymww the party of tha fivst part, wittten notice of tvmpketion of work on hiffwey projecta tnder consifuction wil

That in the coaa of nenoompience with tha ferma of thiy apresmant by T porly of G socond pat, 1ha perly of the finst pett rexsfves
lglr:‘rgrlmlostobdlwﬂcm\mmefadmhmhmh'omhlmmmnmmmwdfmm mom&ﬂmﬂnmnmhmwm

Tl'-'l!ﬂhm'wbm pu;!: dm"f'hmm" mgl mdvm iF sttt mtmnﬂonurﬂuml:: mmmmm: et
begun wihin yEST from of authorixeBon uniesn witten whker s socured by fhe
afund pert from ihe parly of the first parl. b fho pory Firet pArt by pnrly'

Durg the parformance of this — : topont (haramsfiar mfermad
h'm‘:;d o “Mm?umractma d party, for gl He Asskmoos end puceoegors i tn (haramnafar toes
B,

Compliancg with Regulelons: The contracior shal with the Ragutsiions rlative to nancissriminetion in Foderally-
e Tom e 1o e, (. odo ofFedaral Reguiaions, Port 21, 8 Ty e o2
ite, nal i o 3 [ B ral raferenca
misce 5 part of ihis contrael, = ° = Rep 4 . " “ u
ORMRM 188

o,y 1,1977
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Nontlisgriminalinn: The conlracior, wilh 1 o the vk perfonmed by # during ihe contract, shmil not disc e i the

prounds of moe, color, or nelional erigin in,___smleclion and retentian of subcontractors, inchiding #,..of materiple

ond lkacod of aquipment. The corractor shisll not particiyte either direotly or indizoclly in fo discriminetion prohiblied

ma 21.5 of the Reguiations, Including employment practitix when the contract covers a program set forth in 3}
cquitions, . .

gﬁ}ﬂmmmmmww n & woliciations efther by compehtive
or nofetistion made by e contradtar for wark fo tv petformed & subeoniradt, inclufng procurenmants of
Meteriats or Wasee of equipmean, sach potential Suboohirector or lor zhall be nolified by the conirsalor of the
contrector'y, obligations under e eontrect emd the Requlaticns Io nondiscrimination on the grounds of race, Cokx,

of nationa) orfgn.

informagion and Reporte: The contrackor shal provide aifl informetion and repors requinet by the Regulations, of directives
feaued pursust thoroto, and shell permit scoess o its books, Moo, accounts, other scurces of informetlon, nd i
faclities as may be delermined by the Departmant of Transportation or the Federal Highway Adminisirabion fo be partinant to
socartain complinneo with such Regulationn or diroctives. Whare eny Information required of a cortractor ks In the crsiusive
poesession of annther who {3119 o refusen to fumish ih's Infarmation, the cantrector aliall ag verdify fo the of
Frarsportation, o7 the Federsl Highway Administration sa eppropriste, and shal sat forth whet afforis it has made 10 obisin

the informetion.
: Inthe event of the conliaciors noncompllsnen with the nondlbestmination provislons of this

mm&mmuy.
cantract, tho Department of Tranaportotion shell impase ruch canract senctions 69 A of the Federa! Highway Adminiatration
may determing to be apprepriate, inciuding, tut net imitad to,

(1) withhalding of paymenta fo fhe contracinr undar e conltect ynill the contracior compiied, ertior
() conteitition, lesminafion of auspanalon of the comtract, i whoe or b pa,

of Pr The contraglar shall Includa tha provisions: of paragranha *a” trough T° in svty sutorniract,
s0d

pursuant theretc. The aontraotor shal inke such acfion with respact i any Subeontrct o7 proourement oa the Deparimant
of Trensparinton of the Feders! Highway Adminisbration mey tireot a8 8 means of enforcing suth 8008 indluding
ranetions for noncompianés; howover, that, in the svent 0 contracior bacomea [mvoived in, or ks (veaionad with,
nlgnlbnmasmmwwmfr%lmmnnlmm.mmmmmlmDeparbmntof

on o prefoct the Interesin of tho State, and, in addition, the conlrsclor may tequest
the Linind Si5480 to-erer Inko aich bgation io prateci B0 oreots f s United Stobes «

That

year firsl above wiitten,

WITNESS

Lt BoniluBhs

Keren R, Funderburk

e W

Ben F. Campbell, Consultant

//R whan tia to the subject thet constitutes the fresald ancroachment pissses from e party of the seoond
pan snd vests in the parly of the third part, the party of the third part agrees to 2ssume ol responsibiftes and rights and to
rform all cbligations as agreed to herein by the parly of the second part.

IN WA HEREOF, each of the parties to this agreement has caused the same b be execul

DEPARTMENEOF TRANSPORTATION
BY: I
ISION ENGINEER

e day and

White Oak of Waxhaw, LLC

P.0. Bax 7728, Rocky Mount, NG 27804

ATTEST: : Sacond Party
iy b lhr | 4/
4
Lyrn G. West Al Greens, Gounty Manager

Clark to the Board Union Gounty

500 N. Maln Sreet, Monroe, NC 26112 _

Third Party

W(ig:ﬁmatmémpanmthamnmmm Irye and acouraty copy of the formy

RAW (1

Incefporeting Al revialons ko date,
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White Oak Manor of Waxhaw
Permitting Timeline
1. DOT Utility Encroachment Agreement issued October 30, 2008.
2. On February 9, 2009, we were made aware of insufficient water pressure to
support a fire protection system on water main at Howie Mine Road and began

pursuing options.

3. Met with UCPW and Fire Marshall to coordinate to resolve water pressure issues
on February 23. Met again March 5.

4. Fire protection system and site fire main redesign complete and ready to submit
on March 15™,

5. Received Town of Waxhaw Zoning Conditional Approval on February 27, 2009.
6. Started site development March 5™.
7. Submitted revised site water plan March 16, 2009, to UCPW.

8. Made payment to Union County for one half capacity fees of $10,612.50. On
March 16, UCPW verbally approved site water revision at this time.

9. Engineer of Record was notified March 26" by UCPW regarding items needed to
make application for water and sewer permit.

10.Town of Waxhaw approved project for permitting April 9, 2009. Permit issued
April 13, 2009.

11.0n April 17, 2009, UCPW notified Engineer of Record that water application to
the State will be held and not sent to the State for permitting based on County
Commissioners’ directive of April 8,

12. Met with UCPW on April 21% to discuss sewer and water permitting concerns.

13.Sewer application provided to UCPW on April 21%.

14. Water application provided to UCPW on April 24™.

15.0n April 23, UCPW notified Engineer of Record in writing that the project is
accepted for additional discharge of 15,000 GPD domestic waste water

treatment.

16. State sewer permit issued May 12.
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UNION COUNTY
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

ACTION AGENDA ITEM ABSTRACT
Meeting Date: June 1, 2009

Action Agenda Item No. I S
{Central Admin. use only)

SUBJECT: 2009 Enterprise Systems Revenue Bonds

DEPARTMENT: Finance PUBLIC HEARING: Choose one....

ATTACHMENT(S): INFORMATION CONTACT:
Resolution Kai Nelson
Correspondence from financial TELEPHONE NUMBERS:
advisor 704.292.2522

Summary Overview of Options from
May 4, 2009 presentation

DEPARTMENT'S RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Resolution Directing the Application to the
Local Government Commission for Approval of Enterprise Systems Revenue Bonds;
Requesting Local Local Government Commission Approval of the County's Enterprise Systems
Revenue Bonds; Certain Related Matters

BACKGROUND: Several weeks ago, the Commission, based on staff recommendation,
authorized the Manager and Finance Director to extend a forward starting swap. The forward
starting swap was issued several years ago in anticipation of the issuance of revenue bond debt
to support the County's water and sewer capital improvement program. The swap has been
extended several times.

The analysis provided to the Commission indicated that if we could delay the effective date yet
again, we could save some money when compared to proceeding with the swap and issuance
of the debt in June.

Following the Commission's approval, County staff and its financial advisor, First Southwest,
approach Citigroup and formally requested the extension. The advisor's correspondence
regarding those efforts is attached. Summarizing the correspondence, Citigroup is not inclined
to extend on terms that are similar to previous extensions, thus placing the County in the
position of incurring additional costs and financial risk exposure.

Given the unfavorable renewal terms, our recommendation now is to proceed with the issuance
of the debt. The original recommendation to defer the swap for another year provided the

County with some limited present value savings estimated at about 1.5% or $315K with the bulk
of those savings occurring in FY2010; most of the savings resulting from deferring principal and



interest for the first year. To now proceed with the debt issuance, given the unfavorable Citi
terms, makes more sense.

FINANCIAL IMPACT: Average annual debt service of $1.4 million through 2034

Legal Dept. Comments if applicable:

Finance Dept. Comments if applicable:

Manager Recommendation:




Extract of Minutes of a regular meeting of the Board of Commissioner of
the County of Union, North Carolina held at the Union County
Government Center, First Floor, Board Room, Monroe, North Carolina,
at 7:00 p.m. on June 1, 2009.

A regular meeting of the Board of Commissioners of the County of Union, North Carolina (the
“Board of Commissioners”) was held in the Government Center, Board of Commissioners’ Room, Room
118, Monroe, North Carolina, at 7:00 p.m. on June 1, 2009 (the “Meeting™), after proper notice, and was
called to order by the Chairman, and on the roll being called, the following members of the Board of
Commissioners answered present:

The following members of the Board of Commissioners were absent

Also present:

Commissioners moved that the following resolution, copies of which having
been made available to the Board of Commissioners, be adopted:

RESOLUTION OF THE COUNTY OF UNION, NORTH CAROLINA, DIRECTING THE
APPLICATION TO THE LOCAL GOVERKMENT COMMISSION FOR APPROVAL OF
ENTERPRISE SYSTEMS REVENUE BONDS; REQUESTING LOCAL GOVERNMENT
COMMISSION APPROVAL OF THE COUNTY'S ENTERPRISE SYSTEMS REVENUE
BONDS; AND CERTAIN RELATED MATTERS.

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners (the “Board”) of the County of Union, North Carolina
(the “County”) hereby determines that it is necessary to improve its enterprise systems (the “Enterprise
Systems ), including the extensions, additions and capital improvements to, or the acquisition, renewal
and replacement of capital assets of, or purchasing and installing new equipment for, the Enterprise
Systems (collectively, the “Project”);

WHEREAS, the Board is considering the issuance of not to exceed $20,000,000 in aggregate
principal amount of Variable Rate Enterprise Systems Revenue Bonds, Series 2009 (the “2009 Bonds™)
to finance the Project;

WHEREAS, the Board has considered and recognized that variable interest rate debt instruments
may subject the County to the risk of higher interest rates in the future and that in addition to the variable
interest cost, the County must pay the fees of the provider of a credit facility for the 2009 Bonds, which
fees will increase the variable interest cost to the County; provided, however, the County has previously
entered into a forward starting swap agreement with Citibank, N.A. in the notional amount of

PPAB 1567407v]



$20,000,000 (the “Swap”) that corresponds to the amortization of the 2009 Bonds and mitigates the
variable rate exposure to the County;

WHEREAS, the Board hereby determines to {a) retain Parker Poe Adams & Bernstein LLP as
bond counsel, (b) retain First Southwest Company as financial advisor, (¢) retain Merrill Lynch, Pierce,
Fenner & Smith Incorporated as underwriter for the 2009 Bonds, (d) retain Bank of America, N.A. as the
credit provider for the 2009 Bonds, (e) retain U.S. Bank National Association as trustee for the 2009
Bonds and (f) approve Robinson, Bradshaw & Hinson, P.A. as underwriter’s and credit provider’s
counsel, in connection with the issuance by the County of the 2009 Bonds (collectively, the “Financing
Team”), and

WHEREAS, the Board wants the Finance Director of the County to file with the North Carolina
Local Government Commission (the “Commission™) an application for its approval of the 2009 Bonds,
on a form prescribed by the Commission, and (1) request in such application that the Commission
approve (a) the negotiation of the sale of the 2009 Bonds to Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith
Incorporated and (b) the County’s use of the Financing Team and (2) state in such application such facts
and to attach thereto such exhibits in regard to the 2009 Bonds and to the County and its financial
condition, as may be required by the Commission, and to take all other action necessary to the issuance of
the 2009 Bonds;

WHEREAS, the form of the Official Statement (the “Official Statement”) to be used in
connection with the 2009 Bonds has been made available to the Board in the office of the Clerk to the
Board;

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of the County, as follows:

Section 1. That the 2009 Bonds are to be issued by the County for the purpose of providing funds
(1) to finance the costs of the Project and (2) to pay the costs of issuing the 2009 Bonds all as set out fully
in the documents attached to the County’s application to the Commission. The use of the proceeds of the
2009 Bonds to finance the Project, as described, is necessary in order to meet the expanding needs of the
users of the Enterprise Systems and to assure that the Enterprise Systems remain in full compliance with
all state and federal requirements for the provision of water and sewer services.

Section 2. That the use of the Financing Team in connection with the issuance by the County of
the 2009 Bonds is hereby approved and that the County Manager and the Finance Director of the County
are each hereby authorized to engage other professionals as may be necessary related to the issuance of

the 2009 Bonds.

Section 3. That the Finance Director of the County with advice from the County Manager and
bond counsel, is hereby authorized, directed and designated to file an application with the North Carolina
Local Government Commission for its approval of the issuance of the 2009 Bonds.

Section 4. That the Board finds and determines and asks the Commission to find and determine
from the County’s application and supporting documentation:

(a) that the issuance of the 2009 Bonds is necessary or expedient;
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(b) that the not to exceed stated principal amount of the 2009 Bonds will be sufficient but is
not excessive, when added to other moneys available to the Enterprise Systems, for the proposed
Project;

(c) that the Enterprise Systems as now constituted and as it will be constituted after the
completion of the Project is feasible;

(d) that the County’s debt management procedure and policies are excellent; and
(e) that the 2009 Bonds can be marketed at a reasonable interest cost to the County.

Section 5. That the Chairman of the Board, the County Manager and the Finance Director
are hereby authorized to do any and all other things necessary to complete the steps necessary for the
issuance of the 2009 Bonds.

Section 6. That the Board requests that the Commission sell the 2009 Bonds through
negotiation with Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated on such terms as may be agreed on
but at an initial interest rate not exceeding 4.00%.

Section 7. The form, terms and content of the Official Statement are in all respects
authorized, approved and confirmed, and the use of the Official Statement by Merrill Lynch, Pierce,
Fenner & Smith Incorporated in connection with the sale of the 2009 Bonds is hereby in all respects
authorized, approved and confirmed.

Section 8. That the effective date of the Swap may be before the issuance of the 2009
Bonds, but the Swap has been entered into in connection with and as an interest rate hedge against the
2009 Bonds.

Section 9. That this Resolution shall become effective on the date of its adoption.
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On motion of Commissioner , seconded by Commissioner ,
the foregoing resolution entitled “RESOLUTION OF THE COUNTY OF UNION, NORTH CAROLINA,
DIRECTING THE APPLICATION TO THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT COMMISSION FOR APPROVAL OF
ENTERPRISE SYSTEMS REVENUE BONDS; REQUESTING LOCAL GOVERNMENT COMMISSION
APPROVAL OF THE COUNTY’S ENTERPRISE SYSTEMS REVENUE BONDS; AND CERTAIN RELATED
MATTERS” was duly adopted by the following vote:

AYES:

NAYS:

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA

SS.
COUNTY OF UNION

I, Lynn West, Clerk to the Board of Commissioners of the County of Union, North Carolina, DO
HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and exact copy of a resolution entitled “RESOLUTION OF
THE COUNTY OF UNION, NORTH CAROLINA, DIRECTING THE APPLICATION TO THE LOCAL
GOVERNMENT COMMISSION FOR APPROVAL OF ENTERPRISE SYSTEMS REVENUE BONDS;
REQUESTING LOCAL GOVERNMENT COMMISSION APPROVAL OF THE COUNTY’S ENTERPRISE
SYSTEMS REVENUE BONDS; AND CERTAIN RELATED MATTERS” adopted by the Board of
Commissioners of the County of Union, North Carolina, at a meeting held on the 1st day of June, 2009.

WITNESS my hand and the corporate seal of the County of Union, North Carolina, this the
day of June, 2009.

Lynn West
Clerk to the Board
County of Union, North Carolina
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Z" | First Southwest Company Memorandum

5925 Carnegie Bivd.

Suite 104 J. Walter Goldsmith
Charlofts, NC 28209 Vice President
704.731.2080 Direct wgoldsmith@firstsw.com

704.616.8045 Cell
704.731.2086 Fax

Date: May 19, 2009
To: Kai Nelson
Cc:

Subject: Forward starting interest rate swap agreement

The purpose of this memorandum is to0 summarize the recent conversations with Citigroup
regarding the potential extension of the Effective Date on Union County's (the “County’s”) $20
million interest rate swap agreement.

Background Information:

In April, we prepared an analysis for the County summarizing the available options for the
County’s consideration. Those options consisted of the following:

= Option 1
» Terminate the swap today, issue fixed rate bonds in the future

s QOption 2
» Terminate the swap today, and issue traditional fixed rate bonds now

= QOption 3
» Leave the swap in place, and issue variable rate bonds.

= QOption 4
» Modify the swap by extending the Effective Date one year.

The direction given by the Board of County Commissioners during the May 4™ meeting was to
pursue Option 4; extending the Effective Date by one year. As you will recall, in 2007 and 2008
similar extensions of the Effective Date were negotiated with Citigroup with relative ease.
However, during recent conversations with Citigroup and the County, Citigroup's
representatives indicated that the turmoil in the financial markets has resuited in internal policy
changes within Citigroup that would likely impact the requested extension. Specifically, in
connection with the proposed extension Citigroup is requesting that 1) the County agree to post
collateral on the swap, and 2) the County commit to either terminating the swap in February

This communication is for information only, not an offer, solicitation or recommendation, nor an official confirmation of any financial transaction. It is not
to be considerad research. The information is considered to be reliable, but Firat Southwest Cormnpany does not warrant its completeness or accuracy,
prices and availability ars subject to change without notice. We may trada, have Jong or short positions, or act as a market maker in any financial
instrument discussed herein. Clients should consult their own advisors regarding any accounting, legal or tax aspects. Investors are instructed to read
the entire Officiad Stetement to obtain information essential to the making of an informed investment decision.
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2010 or to re-couponing the swap in February 2010 (which would almost certainly require a
cash payment by the County to Citigroup). Despite our continued negotiations with the
Citigroup representatives, their response has been that the market turmoil has resulted in these
new more restrictive policies and they are unable to grant the same extensions which were
offered in 2007 and 2008 on the transaction. Because these new requirements would place
more restrictions on the County without offering the County any offsetting benefit, we do not
recommend pursuing Option 4 (the extension of the effective date).

Next Steps:

The alternative option which we have been discussing (“Cption 3"; leave the swap in place and
issue variable rate bonds) is achievable in the current market environment and would not
require any additional consent or approval from Citigroup. Under this option, the County would
issue variable rate bonds supported by a direct-pay Lefter of Credit being offered by Bank of
America. The interest rate swap with Citigroup would remain in place. Based upon preliminary
conversations with the North Carolina Local Government Commission, we believe such a
transaction could be completed by August.

Please let me know if you have any questions, or need additional information. Thank you for
letting our firm assist you with this matter and we look forward to continuing to work with the
County.

This communication is for information only, not an offer, solicitation or recommendation, nor an official confirmation of any financial transaction. It is not
to ba considered research. The information is considered to be reliable, but First Southwest Company does not warrant its completeness or accuracy,
prices and availability are subject to change without notice. We may trade. have long or short positions, or act as a market maker in any financial
instrument discussed herein. Clients should consult their own advisors regarding any accounting, legal or tax aspects. Investors are instructed to read
the entire Official Statement to obtain information essential to the making of an informed investment decision.
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Overview of Options

Fired Rale (Option 1) Fized Rate (Optien 1) Variable Rate {Oplion 3) Variable Rate (Option 4}
Estimated Debt Service Estimated Debt Seryice Retain Existiag Swap Modily Swap Effective Date
Fiscal 4':::(; :l':::d ":::;;:’:::d 3,82% asyumed interest rale + L18 bp suppori coms 4,13% assnmed lnterest rate + 118 bp support costs
Year Total Net Debt Service & PV of Total Net Total PV of Tolal Total Net PV of Total Total Nel PV of Total
End 6/30 Terminatiou of Swap Net Debit Service Debl Service Net Debi Service Debt Service Net Debt Service Debl Service Net Debt Service

2009 s 399,255 3,399,258
2010 - - 1,635,200 1,368,638 1,505,248 1,444,621 - -
011 1434319 1,320,009 1,632,900 1,302,764 1,495,338 1,376,163 1,577,248 L431.347
2012 1,435,569 1,267,421 1,632,275 1,441,087 1,490,215 1,315,660 1,570,925 1,386,922
2013 1431434 L21,37¢ 1,636,215 1,383,838 1,482,800 1233871 1,562,113 1,323,050
2014 1,432,069 1,163,368 1,634,775 1,328,269 1475016 1,198,463 1557897 1,268,808
2015 1,434,369 1,118,032 1,634,525 1,274,048 1,471,221 1,146,787 1,547,335 1,204,083
2016 1,431,069 1,070,088 £.633,675 1,221,388 1.461,72% 1093013 1.541,284 1,151,502
2017 1,434,194 1,028,804 1,653,650 1,174,882 1,455,096 1,043,798 1,532,727 1,099,486
2014 1431444 983,064 1,632,750 1,423,594 1,447,765 996,208 1,528,412 1,031,794
2009 1431319 44914 1,634,063 1,078,740 1.439,171 950,098 1517 489 1,001,801
2020 1,433,519 207,873 1,632 263 1,033,741 1,420,792 983,512 1,510,719 936,765
2021 1,434,519 871,552 1,634,263 #92,908 1,423,195 854,672 1,501,353 912,158
1022 1,434,319 314,988 1,634,863 992,871 1,410,560 822,137 1,490,872 868,947
2023 1,430,956 890,181 1,631,325 912,414 1,401,662 783,721 1,483 783 829,638
2024 1,435,300 769,884 1,636,138 877,614 1,391,623 746,458 1,470,207 705,619
2028 1,431,825 734,783 1,632,263 839,923 1,384,319 711,338 1,459 245 756,894+
2026 1,431,775 704,789 1,631,588 885,426 1,370,622 576,601 1,451,792 718,870
2027 1,433 753 478,982 1,632,563 173,117 1,360,410 G44,244 1,437,196 480,008
2028 1432450 830,767 1,634,858 742,713 1,343,685 612,743 1,425,992 847,834
2029 1,434,000 624,973 1,634,500 712,336 1339,680 183,800 L417,107 o17.610
2030 1,435,500 600,179 1,633,500 482,962 1,323,911 153,524 1,401,077 385,787
2031 1,434,250 575,245 1,634,500 653,584 1,A11,373 128,980 1,387,903 156,678
2032 1,435,250 $52,25¢ 1,632,250 628,052 1,301,933 560,953 1,377,440 330,007
2033 [.433,250 529,049 1,531,750 602,321 1,284,983 474,320 1,359,048 501,660
2034 1,433,250 JoT.530 1,632,750 578,178 1,271,111 430,122 1,343 367 475,701

H 37,798,974 3 13,857,498 1 40,819,953 3 24,886,722 5 35,077,475 3 21,677,312 3 15.452,335 5 11,358,555

Nole: Presend valued al & blended rate of 4 24%
Fixed Raie [ssuences assunie Market Rales as o 4/21/2009
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UNION COUNTY
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

ACTION AGENDA ITEM ABSTRACT
Meeting Date: 06/01/09

Action Agenda Item No. l ‘?
{Central Admin. use only)

SUBJECT: Non-Mandated Programs within the Department of Social Services

DEPARTMENT: Department of Social PUBLIC HEARING: Yes
Services (UCDSS)

ATTACHMENT(S): INFORMATION CONTACT:
D. Dontae Latson

TELEPHONE NUMBERS:

704-296-4301
704-221-0088

DEPARTMENT'S RECOMMENDED ACTION: Presentation 3-5 minutes. The UCDSS
respectfully requests that the BOCC review the packet of information which includes program
literature, a brief description of each non-mandated program, and a PowerPoint presentation
transferred to DVD for each program area. For educational purposes, this information has also
been shared with media outlets inciuding the Enquirer Journal.

BACKGROUND: Of the 36 programs and/or services offered through UCDSS, 4 of these
programs are non-mandated. The non-mandated programs are listed as follows: General
Assistance Fund (GA), Volunteer Services (Surplus Food & Commondity Distribution, Christmas
Bureau, etc...), Union County Group Home for Children, and Community Alternative
Programming for Disabled Adults and Children (CAP). Considering the financial crisis we are
facing in Union County, DSS staff has taken a proactive approach to investigate the possibility
of altering volunteer services and contracting services for the group home and CAP programs.
Additionally, the information provided will illustrate the drastic impact of slashing the General
Assistance funds from last year's budget and the 09-10 FY.

FINANCIAL IMPACT: Deciding to remove these programs and services from UCDSS would
result in increased expenditures from the county budget.

Legal Dept. Comments if applicable:




Finance Dept. Comments if applicable:

Manager Recommendation:




UNIVE:

S TY

SCHOOL OF PHARMACY

Date: May 18, 2009

Contact: Dr. Greg Alston, Assistant Dean for Assessment, (704) 233-8329; galston@wingate.edu
Will you help us improve the lives of local senior citizens?

These are tough economic times and the financial pressure is greatest on our most vulnerable senior citizens. With
disposable income decreasing, medical care needs increasing, and their cognitive abilities waning, critical errors in
judgment are becoming routine. The Kaiser foundation reported that less than 5% of Medicare Part D beneficiaries
chose the best priced plan in 2006, And area pharmacists fear that seniors routinely reduce or eliminate doses of
necessary drugs while simultaneously being over medicated by multiple physicians. These medication misadventures
cost the health care system over 30 Billion dollars in preventable hospital admissions every year, While the Medicare
Part D drug benefit was intended to ease the cost burden on seniors, the program has proven confusing and difficult

to navigate for many patients.

Five of my Wingate University School of Pharmacy students recently addressed this critical defect in the
administration of the Medicare Part D program. They held an event for local seniors at Qur Lady of Lourdes Catholic
Church. Seniors were encouraged to put all of their medications in a “Brown Bag” and bring it to my students for
review. The review screened for duplicate therapies, untreated conditions, side effects, and drug interactions. After
identifying the most cost effective plan for each patient the students identified lower cost drug options that could
provide the patient with similar therapeutic benefit to their existing expensive drugs. The seniors were comforted to
know that our review respected their privacy and was independent of any conflicting affiliation with a drug company,

retailer or insurer.

With the help of Parsons Drug Store in Wadesboro, a total of 50 patients were reviewed as part of this pilot project.
The average annual savings for each patient was potentially $438.41 by switching to the lowest cost Medicare Part D
plan with a combined annual potential savings of $1303.45 from including therapeutic substitutions.

This student project was selected by WUSOP Faculty to submit to The American Association of Colleges of
Pharmacy Community Engaged Service Award for 2009. Winning this award would not only provide recognition for
these deserving students but grant funding so that they could expand the project to reach more seniors during the
critical Fall enrollment sign up period of November 15th to December 31, 2009. A key element of this award

submission package is a personal recommendation letter from local community leaders.



Will you please help us by writing a ene page letter on your own letterhead in support of this student
project?

The goals of the project are to (1) help seniors choose the most cost effective Medicare Part D drug plan, (2)
help seniors identify cost saving drugs that may provide equivalent therapeutic benefit, and (3) help seniors
understand the importance of taking their medications properly to avoid under-treatment or over-treatment of their

disease states.
The specific questions you should address are:
Why do you believe this project is worthwhile?
How would you expect this project to positively benefit your community?
Would this project help seniors get appropriate care at a lower cost?
Would this project improve seniors understanding of their drugs and medicine?
Do you think it is important for students to engage with their community?

With your support we hope to win this award and improve our ability to help strengthen our community by
improving the quality of our senior citizens final years. Thank you in advance for your assistance in this venture and
we look forward to working with you in the future, Unfortunately we are on a short deadline and need to have our
support letters collected by May 27, 2009. 1f you have any questions or concerns please call. Please mail the original to
me at the address below but I would appreciate it if you could fax a copy as well to 1-888-870-2519. Alternatively a
PDF version could be emailed to me at galston@wingate.edu

Sincerely,

Dr. Greg Alston PharmD

Assistant Dean

Wingate University School of Pharmacy
Campus Box 3087

Wingate, North Carolina 28174-0159
galston@wingate.edu

704-233-8329 Phone

888-870-2519 Fax



June 1, 2009

The American Association of Colleges
of Pharmacy

Re: Wingate University School of Pharmacy Project Submission -
Community Engaged Service Award for 2009

Dear Ladies and Gentlemen:

The Union County Board of Commissioners applauds the efforts of the Wingate
University School of Pharmacy students to provide the Medicare Improvement Project
to Senior Citizens. Government has many responsibilities to its citizens, but none is
more important than protecting those that cannot help themseives. While many seniors
are outwardly living a busy life they are unable to comprehend and execute
sophisticated decisions without assistance. No decision is more important than making
quality healthcare choices. However, no program is really designed to make these
choices for seniors.

it is our understanding that the program developed by these students assists Medicare
recipients to better understand the Medicare Part D Program and its options. Armed
with this better understanding, Union County seniors have been able to make wise
choices regarding benefit options. The savings in terms of disposable income for these
folks have been tremendous.

We support the students' efforts to assist our senior citizens in making decisions that
provide them with medication options that can be purchased within their financial
limitations. We hope that you will look favorably upon their application for the Service
Award and will be in a position fo recognize them for their initiative, concern for the
welfare of the senior citizens, and for their hard work in promoting their program.

Sincerely,

Lanny Openshaw, Chairman
Union County Board of Commissioners



UNION COUNTY
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

ACTION AGENDA ITEM ABSTRACT
Meeting Date: 6/1/09

Action Agenda Item No. 9 0
(Central Admin. use only)

SUBJECT: Appointment of Tax Administrator
DEPARTMENT: Tax/Legal PUBLIC HEARING: No
ATTACHMENT(S): INFORMATION CONTACT:
John Petoskey's (i) resume; (ii) Al Greene
Background and Working Knowledge; John Petoskey
and (iii) Tax Office Accomplishments Jeff Crook
TELEPHONE NUMBERS:

704-283-2625
704-283-3748
704-283-3673

DEPARTMENT'S RECOMMENDED ACTION: Consider Appcintment of John Petoskey for
Four-Year Term as Tax Administrator, i.e. Assessor and Tax Collector

BACKGROUND: Like many larger jurisdictions, Union County has consolidated the offices of
Tax Collector and Assessor into a professional Tax Administrator position. This position has
been filled by John Petoskey since 2003. Mr. Petoskey was initially appointed in 2003 to fill an
unexpired term through June, 2005, at which time he was appointed for a four-year term. The
current term expires at the end of June, and it thus time for re-appointment.

Pursuant to G.S. 105-294, the County Assessor is appointed by the Board of Commissioners for
a term of not less than two nor more than four years. The Assessor must meet the following
requirements: (1) Be at least 21 years of age as of the date of appointment; (2) Hold a high
school diploma or certificate of equivalency, or in the alternative, have five years employment
experience in a vocation which is reasonably related to the duties of county assessor; (3) Within
two years of the date of appointment, achieve a passing score in courses of instruction
approved by the Department of Revenue covering various topics; and (4) Upon completion of
the required four courses, achieve a passing grade in a comprehensive examination in property
tax administration conducted by the Department of Revenue. The Assessor also has continuing
educational requirements. Pursuant to G.S. 105-349, the Tax Collector is appointed by the
Board of Commissioners for a term of not less than one year (or in the event appointed in or
after July, for the remainder of the fiscal year). The Collector must be "a person of character
and integrity whose experience in business and collection work is satisfactory to the governing
body." The Assessor and Collector can be removed from office during a term for good cause



after notice and an opportunity for hearing.

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

L.egal Dept. Comments if applicable:

Finance Dept. Comments if applicable:

Manager Recommendation:




Contract / Purchase Order Summary of Major Terms and Conditions

6-01-2009

[ Reference Vendor Name Purpose Payment Terms Comprehensive Plans  [B.A.| S# |
Consent Agenda ltem - Contracts / Purchase Orders Over $20,000 (List) .
A Thomas A, Ebert Professional services agreement to provide $ 58,800 Lump sum amount Operating Budget — 2010 nfa | 2253
commercial/industrial real property valuation NTE.
appraisal support for the Tax Administration
Department. This is the annual renewal of the
agreement.
B South Piedmont Renewal of agreement to provide educational $ 57,863 Estimated annual Operating Budget — 2010 nfa | 2255
Community College  |service to Work First participants (job search amount {NTE).
skills, academic skills testing and evaluation).
C Employment Security |Renewal of agreement to provide employment | $ 47,743 Estimated annual Operating Budget — 2010 nfa | 2250
Commission services for Work First participants (job amount (NTE).
development, search and placement).
D North Carolina Agreement to provide public health contract $ 150,000 Estimated annual Operating Budget — 2010 nfa | 2256
Aliiance of Public personnel {certified health care service amount (NTE).
Health Agencies, Inc. |professionals) on an as needed basis.
E Software House Renewal of agreement to provide anfivirus $ 24,841 Lump sum amount Operating Budget — 2009 nfa | Req.
International software. NTE. 509
F Davenport Group Renewal of annual hardware and software $ 17,500 Hardware Operating Budget — 2009 nfa | Req.
maintenance and support agreement for the 3,077 Software 519
primary and replication compellant SAN units | § 20,577 Lump sum amount
(storage area network units, disk space storage NTE.
for the servers).
G CDW Government Renewal of annual maintenance and support | $ 20,000 Lump sum amount Operating Budget — 2009 nfa | Req.
Inc. agreement for the operating software that most NTE. 517
of the County's Windows servers utilize.
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UNION COUNTY AGENDA IT?NI
Office of the Tax Administratom T{2a.,
Collections Division MEETING DATE ___ (s (1[04

500 N. Main St. Ste 119

P.O. Box 38 704-283-3848
Monroe, NC 28111-0038 704-283-3897 Fax

TO: Lynn West

Clerk to the Board
FROM: John Petoskey }

Tax Administrator
DATE: May 12, 2009
SUBJECT: Departmental Monthly Report

The coliector’s monthly/year to date collections report for the month ending April 30, 2009 is attached
for your information and review.

Should you desire additional information, I will do so at your request.

Attachment

JP/PH



APRIL 2009
PERCENTAGE FOR REGULAR AND MOTOR VEHICLE

APRIL 30, 2009 REGULAR TAX | 2009 2008 2007 2006
BEGINNING CHARGE . 250,443.19 |  143,633,128.09 | 116,277,270.51 | 96,257,180.12_
DISCOVERIES B | 19,508.12 2,979.46 | _‘ B
FARM DEFERMENTS B [ 269998 | 1,217.40 1,101.46
RELEASES | (438.62) (7,931.48)]  (1,465.96) (414.84)
TOTAL CHARGE L 269,513.69 |  143,630,876.05 | 116,277,021.95 |  96,257,866.74
BEGINNING COLLECTIONS | 2617260  137,067,225.84 | 115,248,083.11 | 95755,467.65
COLLECTIONS B 26,106.47 | 816,891.04 |  51,196.34 13,571.41
TOTAL COLLECTIONS | 52,279.07 | 137,884,116.88 | 115,299,279.45 |  95,769,039.06
BALANCE OUTSTANDING 217,234.62 5746,759.17 | 977,742.50 488,827.68
PERCENTAGE OF REGULAR i 19.40%| 9. OO%J' ~ 99.16% 199.49%
APRIL 30, 2009 MOTOR VEHICLE ) i - } - )
BEGINNING CHARGE - - | 9,947,746.42 12,060,714.67 | 10,334,466.56 |
11TH M/V BILLING - o 942,702.77 ) o _
ASSESSOR RELEASE ~ ) (6,002.69) (576.08)! (343.95)|
ASSESSOR REFUND. ) B _ _ (1,049.88) (818.23) (116.47)
COLLECTOR RELEASE ] - (7,891.28)| (227.34) ___
'COLLECTORREFUND B -  (2,464.54) (646.98) ]
 REIMBURSEMENTS - 5,138.34 ~ 4,025.84 22859
ADJUSTMENTS ) ) , 17.39 (0.26) (0.65)
TOTAL CHARGE - 10,878,196.53 | 12,062,471.62 |  10,334,234.08
BEGINNING COLLECTIONS N 8,247,129.99 | 11,837,819.59 |  10,233,800.16
COLLECTIONS B i - 892,316.70 | 23,554.77 | 2,114.14
| TOTAL COLLECTIONS ) - '9,139,446.69 |  11,861,374.36 |  10,235,914.30
BALANCE OUTSTANDING ) © 1,738,749.84 201,097.26 |  98,319.78
PERCENTAGE OF MOTOR VEHICLE 0.00% _ 84.02% 98.33% 199.05%
OVERALL CHARGED - | 269,513.69 |  154,509,072.58 | 128,339,493.57 | 106,592,100.82_
OVERALL COLLECTED 52,279.07 | 147,023,563.57 | 127,160,653.81 | 106,004,953.36
OVERALL PERCENTAGE _ 0.00%' 95.16% 99.08% 99.45%




APRIL 2009
PERCENTAGE FOR REGULAR AND MOTOR VEHICLE

APRIL 30, 2009 REGULAR TAX 2005 2004 2003 2002
BEGINNING CHARGE | 86,248,506.59  75,937,325.39 | 60,651,764.73 | 51,673,983.06
DISCOVERIES - - ] B
FARMDEFERMENTS | qo8431| | i
RELEASES I (237.70) (22.42)] (2261)] _,,,
TOTAL CHARGE - 86,249,353.20 |  75,937,302.97 | 60,651,742.12 |  51,673,983.06
BEGINNING COLLECTIONS _85,975,173.81 | 75_@ 198.08 | 60,526,522.09 | 51,585,164.46
COLLECTIONS e ~ 3,161.16 2,195.84 368.18 |  346.17
TOTAL COLLECTIONS 85,978,334.97 | 75,756,393.92 | 60,526,890.27 | 51,585,510.63
BALANCE OUTSTANDING 271,01823 |  180,909.05|  124851.85| 8847243
PERCENTAGE OF REGULAR |  9969%  99.76%| 99.79%  99.83%
APRIL 30, 2009 MOTOR VEHICLE ) B T L }
BﬁEﬁGJNNING CHARGE 1 10,040,734.87 | - T
11TH M/V BILLING ] - B R
ASSESSOR RELEASE (81.35) - T -
ASSESSOR REFUND ] - - I
COLLECTOR RELEASE R -
COLLECTORREFUND | o I ; -
REIMBURSEMENTS . bB282 - . -
ADJUSTMENTS L ©62y - - -
'TOTAL CHARGE ] 10,041,215.72 - - -
BEGINNING COLLECTIONS o 9,965,204.63 ; I -
'COLLECTIONS 970.31 - - -
TOTAL COLLECTIONS 9,966,174.94 - - e
BALANCE OUTSTANDING 7504078 - | - -
PERCENTAGE OF MOTOR VEHICLE - 99.25%
OVERALLCHARGED | 96,290,568.92  75,937,302.97  60,651,742.12  51,673,983.06 |
OVERALL COLLECTED  95,944,509.91 | 75,756,393.92 |  60,526,890.27 | 51,585,510.63
OVERALL PERCENTAGE |  99.64% 99.76% 99.79% 99.83%




APRIL 2009

PERCENTAGE FOR REGULAR AND MOTOR VEHICLE

APRIL 30, 2009 REGULAR TAX 2001 2000 1999 1998
BEGINNING CHARGE o 48,122,732.72 | 43,553,051.95 | 40,736,778.57 | 37.964,034.52
DISCOVERIES ]

FARM DEFERMENTS B ]
RELEASES

TOTAL CHARGE

48,122,732.72

43, 553 051.95

40,736,778.57

37,964,034.52

BEGINNING COLLECTIONS

~ 48,057,621.60

43 ,508,830.23

40,697,668.28

37,936,403.56

'COLLECTIONS

165.54

13.36

55.61

TOTAL COLLECTIONS

48,057,787.14

43,508,843.59

~ 40,697,668.28

37,936, 459.17

IBALANCE OUTSTANDING

64,945.58 |

44,208.36

39,110.29

27,575.35

[PERCENTAGE OF REGULAR

99.87%

99.90%

99,90%

© 99.93%

APRIL 30, 2009 MOTOR VEHICLE

BEGINNING CHARGE

[11TH MV BILLING

ASSESSOR RELEASE

ASSESSOR REFUND

COLLECTOR RELEASE

COLLECTOR REFUND

REIMBURSEMENTS

ADJUSTMENTS

TOTAL CHARGE

BEGINNING COLLECTIONS

COLLECTIONS

TOTAL COLLECTIONS

'BALANCE OUTSTANDING

PERCENTAGE OF MOTOR VEHICLE

OVERALL CHARGED

48,122,732.72

43,563,051.95 |

 40,736,778.57

37,964,034.52 |

OVERALL COLLECTED

48,057,787.14

43,508,843.59

40,697,668.28

37,936,459.17

OVERALL PERCENTAGE

99.87%

99.90%

99.90%

99.93%




UNION COUNTY

Office of the Tax AdministratorAGENDA ITEM 704-283-3746
500 N. Main Street, Suite 236 ;Lk 704-292-2588 Fax

P.O. Box 97 Y
Monroe, NC 28111-0097 MEETING DATE _ b

M John C. Petoskey
Froeztdministrator

MEMORANDUM

TO: Lynn West
Central Adminstration

FROM: John C. Petoskey
Tax Administrator

DATE: May 12, 2009

RE: TENTH Motor Vehicle Billing (Revised)

I hereby certify a Revised TENTH Motor Vehicle Billing Valuation under the
staggered program as required by N.C.G.S.105-330. This revision exhibits a $169.91
increase to Lake Park Tax. Attached hereto is a list of the values, rates and taxes for each
taxing unit.

JCP: jw



MV22A

NOTE :

32
a2
32
39
39
aa
ER:]

37
37
37
34
34

78
78
T8
T8
78
T8
78
78
78
78
7B
78
78
78
78
T8

M OTOR

VEHTICLE

S YSTEM

Motor Vehicle Billing Summary for the period 03/01/2009 to 03/31/200%9

Infermaticn for this report is taken from original billing records only

and DOES NOT include any subsequent changes or adjustments to vehicle

situsg or value.

---Bdg No--- --~---- Degcription~-------
___________ County. .. ........ . ...,
e Countby. ... ... ...t
e COUNLY - v v i st e e m e o e o

Totale........... ... ... ¢
Totals....... ... :

__________ Fire Dist Springa......:
__________ Fire Dist springs......:
__________ Fire Dist Springs......:
___________ Fire Dist Stallings....:
. _____ Fire Dist Stallings....:
__________ Fire dist Hemby Bridge.:
__________ Fire dist Hemby Bridge.:
______ Fire dist Hemby Bridge.:
o Fire dist Wesley Chapel:
__________ Fire dist Wesley Chapel:
__________ Fire dist Wesley Chapel:
__________ Fire Dist Waxhaw.......:
__________ Fire Dist Waxhaw.......:
Totals....... ...+ ... :

220125 Taxes Payable Marvin.......:
220125 Taxes Payable Marvin.......:
220130 Taxes Fayable Monroe.......:
220130 Taxes Payable Monroe....... :
220170 Taxes Pavyable Wingate.,.....:
220170 Taxes Payable Wingate...... :
220120 Taxes Pavyable Marshville. .. :
220120 Taxes Payable Marshville...:
22015C Taxes Payable Waxhaw.... ... H
220150 Taxes Payable Waxhaw.......:
220110 Taxes Payable Indian Trail.:
220110 Taxes Payable Indian Trail.:
220140 Taxes Payable Stallings....:
220140 Taxes Payable Stallinge....:
220160 Taxes Payable Weddington...:
220160 Taxes Payable Weddington...:
220160 Taxes Payable Weddington. . .:

T8
T8

220115 Taxes

Payable

Lake Park....:

CH99599
CN399%999
CN99939

FRO15
FRO15
FRO15
FRO20
FROZ(
FRO213
FRO23
FRO23
FRO26
FR0O26
FRO26
FRO28B
FRO28

MNO1000
MNO10OOO
MNO20COC
MNG2000
MN03000
MNO30OO
MN04000
MNQ4000
MNO5000
MNOS000
MNO600CD
MNDS60OD
MHNCT7000
MHNQ7000
MNOS80D0OO
MNOBODO
MNO8000
MNO9000

Bill
Year

2008
2008
2008

2008
2008
2008
2008
2008
2008
2008
2008
2008
2008
2008
2008
2008

2008
2008
2008
2008
2008
2008
2008
2008
2008
2p08
2008
2008
2008
2008
2008
2008
2008
2008

Rate
Year

2006
2007
2008

20086
2007
2008
2007
2008
2006
2007
2008
2006
2007
2008
2007
2008

2007
2008
2007
2008
2007
2008
2007
2008
2007
2008
2007
2008
2007
2008
2006
2007
2008
2007

102
12,195

12,301

245
13
1,779

114
124
442
21
1,694

15
762

595

---Value---

36,953
908,500
119,799,935

48,100
3,970,670
96,900
13,811,845
8,570
769,430
670
839,949

. 10,740
5,044,984
185,310
17,768,129
131,520
7,959,273
20,39¢0
11,840
7,638,665
30,100

---Dhate- - -
05/11/2009

226.41
6,465,34a
796,664.49

1,731.238
51.04
4,785.53

E2.11
7,190.94

24.086
1,986.00
586.42
76,944 .17
33.42
3,000.86

3,191.78
36.562
17,152.93
282.94
25,764.30
128.84
17,430.74

2,291.91
69.23

--Time- -
14:50:32

Page
1



MV22A

NOTE :

M QO TOR

VEHTICLE

S Y S TEM

Motor Vehicle Billing Summary for the period 03/01/2009 to 03/31/200%

and DOES NOT

situs or wvalue.

---Bdg No--- -

78
78
78
78
78
78
78
78
78
78

220115
220175
220145
220145
220165
220165
220135
220135
220155
220165

Taxes
Taxes
Taxes
Taxes
Taxes
Taxes
Taxes
Taxes
Taxes
Taxes

----Degcription----~---

Payable
Payable
Payable
Payable
Payable
Payable
Payable
Payable
Payable
Payable

Lake Park....:
Fairview..... H
Hemby Bridge.:
Hemby Bridge.:
Wesley Chapel:
Wesley Chapel:
Unionville,..:
Unionville...:
Mnrl Sprngs..:
Mnrl Sprngs..:

MNQ90CO
MNOS300
MNO9500
MNQOS500
MN0O9700
MNOS700
MNO3800
MN0O9800
MN09300
MN0O9300

Bill Rate
Year Year

2008 2008
2008 2008
2008 2007
2008 2008
2008 2007
2008 2008
2008 2007
2008 2008
2008 2007
2008 2008

Information for this report is taken Erom original billing records cnly
include any subsegquent changes or adjustments to vehicle

---Value---

1,807,860
1,223,015
10,570
547,365
29,870
4,183,450
28,360
2,709,370
8,210
1,318,454

70,223,612

---Date---
05/11/20009

~-~--Tax----

12,236.03
244 .64
1.62
137.95
5.97
690.24
5.68
541.70
2.22
329.81

163,332.20

987,565.40

--Time- -
14:50:32

Page
2



UNION COUNTY
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

ACTION AGENDA ITEM ABSTRACT
Meeting Date: May 21, 2009

Action Agenda Item No. 2 15

(Central Admin. use only)

SUBJECT: NEW DENTAL PROCEDURE
DEPARTMENT: HEALTH PUBLIC HEARING: No
ATTACHMENT(S): INFORMATION CONTACT:

Phillip Tarte

TELEPHONE NUMBERS:

704-296-4801

DEPARTMENT'S RECOMMENDED ACTION: Accept a new Dental procedure and fee.

BACKGROUND: The Health Department Dental Clinic would like to offer a hard night guard as
a new Dental procedure and, in accordance with Medicaid rates, a fee of $225 would be
charged. This procedure and fee were approved by the Board of Health during its May 11,
2009, meeting.

FINANCIAL IMPACT: No financial impact to the County.

l.egal Dept. Comments if applicable:

Finance Dept. Comments if applicable:

Manager Recommendation:
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